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NOTICE 13 MEREBY GIVEN that the Eighth Annuai General Meeting {(AGM) of the Company will be held
at the Conference Room at No. 8898, Kawasan Perindustrian Peringkat 4, Batu Berendam, 75350 Melaka
on Tuesday, 29 June 2010 at 10.30 a.m.

AGENDA

1. To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 {Resolution 1)
December 20G9 together with the Reporis of the Directors and the Audiiors thereon.

2. To approve the payment of Directors’ Fees for the financial year ended 31 December {Resolution 2)
2008,

3. To re-elect Mr. Sai Chin Hock, the Director who retires pursuant to Article 98 of the {Resolution 3}
Company's Articles of Association.

4. To re-elect the following Directors who retire pursuant to Article 92 of the Company’s
Articles of Association:-

(a) Mr. Ang Kwee Teng (Resoluiion 4}
() Mr. Lim Tau Linh (Resolution 5)

5. To re-appoint Ernst & Young as Auditors of the Company untit the conclusion of the {Resolution 8)
naxt AGM and to authorise the Directors {o fix their remuneralion.

6. As Special Business

To consider and if thought fit, with or without modification, fo pass the following
resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions and Special Resolution:-

Ordinary Resolution 1
- Authoritv To lssue Shares Pursuant To Section 132D Of The Companies (Resolution 7}
Act. 1965

“THAT subject to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965 and approvals of the
relevant governmental and/or regutatory authorities, the Directors be and are hereby
empowered 1o issue and allot shares in the Company, at any fime to such persons and
upon such terms and condisions and for such purposes as the Directors may, in their
absolute discretion, deemn fit, provided that the aggregate number of shares issued
pursuant to this Resolution does not exceed ten per centum (10%) of the issued and
paid-up share capital of the Company for the time being and the Directors be and are
also empowered to chtain the approval for the listing of and quotation for the additicnal
shares so issued on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad; AND THAT such authority
shalf commence immediately upon the passing of this resolution and continue to be in
force uniil the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company.”
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Ordinary Resolution 2
- Preoposed Renewal Of Shareholders' Mandate For Recurrent Related Party
Transactions Of A Revenue Or Trading Nature

"THAT subject to the Companies Act, 1985, the Memorandum and Asticles of
Association of the Company and Main Market Listing Requiremenis of Bursa
Maiaysia Securities Berhad, approval be and is hereby given to Ornapaper Berhad
and its subsidiaries (the Group) to enter into any of the category of recurrent related
party transactions of a revenue or trading nature as set out in Section 2.3(}) of the
Company’s Circular to Shareholders dated 4 June 2010 with the refated party
mentioned therein which are necessary for its day-to-day operations subject jurther to
the following:-

{a) the fransactions are in the ordinary course of business and are on normal
commercial terms which are not more favourable to the related party involved
than generally available to the public and on terms not to the detriment of the
minority sharsholders;

ip) the Shareholders’ Mandate is subject fo annual renewal and disclosure is made
in the annual report of the aggregate value of iransactions conducted pursuant to
the Shareholders’ Mandate during the financial year; and

(¢) inameeting to obtain shareholders’ mandate, the interested directors, interested
major shareholders or interested persons connected with a director or major
shareholder; and where it involves the interest of an interested person connected
with a director or major shareholder, such director or major shareholder must not
vote on the resolution approving the transactions. An interested director or
interested maior shareholder must ensure that persons connected with him
abstain from voting on the resolution approving the transactions.

THAT such approval shall continue to be in force untit-

)  the conciusion of the next AGM of the Company following the general meeting at
which such Proposed Sharehoider's Mandate was passed, at which time it will
lapse, uniess by resolution passed at the general meeting, the authorily is
renewed;

(il) the expiration of the period within which the AGM of the Company after the cate
is required to be held pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act 1865; or

(i) revoked or varied by resolution passed by the sharehoiders in an AGM or
Exiraordinary General Meeting,

whichever is earlier;

AND THAT the Directors and/or any of them be and are hereby authorised to complete
and do all such acts and things (including executing such documents as may be
required} to give effect to the Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate.”

{Resolution 8)
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Ordinary Resojution 3
- Proposed New Sharehoiders’ Mandate For Recurrent Related Party Transactions
Of A Revenue Or Trading Najure

“THAT subject to the Companies Act, 1965, the Memorandum and Arficles of Association
of the Company and Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad, approval be and Is hereby given to Ornapaper Berhad and its subsidiaries (the
Group) to enter into any of the category of recurrent related party transactions of a
revenue of frading nature as set out in Section 2.3(ii) of the Company's Circular to Share-
holders dated 4 June 2010 with the related party menticned therein which are necessary
for its day-to-day cperations subject {urther to the following:-

(a) the fransacticns are in the ordinary course of business and are on normai
commercial terms which are not more favourable to the related party involved
than generally available to the public and on terms not {o the deiriment of the
minority shareholders;

(b) the Shareholders’ Mandate is subject to annual renewal and disciosure is made
in the annual report of the aggregate value of transactions conducted pursuant
io the Shareholders’ Mandate during the financial year; and

(c) in a meeting to obtain shareholders’ mandate, the interested directors, interested
major shareholders or interested persons connected with a director or major
shareholder; and where it involves the interest of an interested person connected
with a director or major sharehalder, such direclor or major shareholder must not
vote on the resolulion approving the transactions. An interested director or
interested maijor shareholder must ensure that persons connected with him
abstain from voling on ihe resolution approving the fransactions.

THAT such approval shail continue to be in force untit:-

(i) the conciusion of the next AGM of the Company following the general meeting at
which such Proposed Renewal of Shareholder's Mandate was passed, at which
time i will lapse, uniess by resolution passed at the general meeting, the author-
ity is renewed;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the AGM of the Company after the date
is required to be held pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act 1965; or

(iif) revoked or varied by resolution passed by the shareholders in an AGM or
Extraordinary General Meeling,

whichever is earlier;

AND THAT the Directors andior any of them be and are hereby authorised to complete
and do all such acts and things (including executing such documents as may be required)
to give effect to the Proposed New Shareholders’ Mandate.”

Annual Report 2009
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Special Resolution
- Proposed Amendment {o the Articles of Association of the Company (Resolution 10}

"THAT the proposed amendment to the Articles of Association of the Company as set
out in the Circular to Bhareholders of the Company dated 4 June 2010 be and is heraby
approved.”

7. To transact any other ordinary business of which due notice has been given.

By Grder of the Board

Chua Siew Chuan (MAICSA 0777689)
Szan Ne Teo (LSG008058)
Company Secretaries

Melaka
4 June 2010

Explanatory Notes To Special Business:-
1. Authority to issue shares pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act 1965

The proposed Qrdinary Resolution 1 is to seek a rerewal of the general mandate for the issuz of new
ordinary shares in the Company pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965 which was approved
by shareholders at the AGM held on 26 June 2008, The company did not issue any new shares after the
previous mandate was obtained at the last AGM,

The proposed Ordinary Resolution 1, if passed, would enable the Company fo avoid delay and cost of
convening further general meetings to approve the issue of shares for such purposes provided that the
aggregate number of the shares issued does not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company for
the time bsing.

2. Proposed Renewal of Existing Shareholders’ Mandate for Recurrent Related Party Transaction of A
Revenue Or Trading Nature and Proposed New Shareholders’ Mandate for Additional Recurrent
Related Party Transactions of A Revenue Or Trading Nature

The Resolutions 8 and 9, if passed would enable the Company and its subsidiaries to enter into any of the
naw and existing recusrent related party iransactions of a revenue or frading nature which are necessary for
the Group's day-te-day operations, subject to the fransactions baing in the ordinary course of business and
on normal commercial terms which are not more favourable to the related parties than those generally
available to the public and are not to the detriment of the minority shareholders of the Company.

3. Propesed Amendment to the Articles of Association of the Company

The proposed Special Resolution would aliow the Company to amend its Articles of Association in line with
the implementation of Electronic Dividend Payment ("e-Dividend”) by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Annuzl Report 2009 05
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Notes:

{i In respect of deposited security, only members whose names appear in the Record of Depositors on 21
June 2010 ("General Meeting Record of Depositors”) shall be eligible to attend the Meeting.

(il A member entitled to attend and vole al this Meeling is entitled io appoint more than two {2) proxies to
attend and vote in his stead. A proxy may bui need not be a member of the Company and & member may
appoint any person to be his proxy without limitation and the provision of Section 149(1)(&), (b). (¢} and
{d) of the Companies Act, 1965 shall not apply lo the Company.

(i} Where a member appoints twe (2) or more proxies, the appointment shalt be invalid unless he or she
specifies the proportion of his or her holdings to be represented by each proxy.

{(iv) The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney
duly authorised in writing or if the appointor is a corporation, either under its seal or under the hand of an
officer or attorney duly authorised.

(v} The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at Lot 1A,
8" Floor, Menara Pertam, Jalan BBP 2, Taman Batu Berendam Putra, Batu Berendam, 75350 Melaka not
less than 48 hours before the time for holding the Meeting or at any adjournment thereof,
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AUDIT COMMITTEE

NOMINATION COMMTTEE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

COMPANY SECRETARIES

REGISTERED OFFICE

SHARE REGISTRAR

AUDITORS

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING

Mr. Lim Tau Lih

' (Managing Director)

Mr. Sai Chin Hock
Mr. Ang Kwee Teng
Mr. See Wan Seng
(Execufive Director}

Tuan Hafi Azhar bin Nayan
{(Non-Independent Non-Executive Direclor)

Mr. Siow Kee Yen
Puan Adiliah binti Ahmad Nordin
(independent Non-Executive Director}

Mr. Siow Kee Yen (Chairman;}
Puan Adillah binti Ahmad Nordin

Tuan Haji Azhar bin Nayan

Mr. Siow Kee Yen (Chairman)
Puan Adiflah binti Ahmad Nordin

Tuan Haji Azhar bin Nayan

Puan Adillah binti Ahmad Nordin (Chairperson)
Mr. Siow Kee Yen

Tuan Haji Azhar bin Nayan

Ms. Chua Siew Chuan (MAICSA 0777689)
Ms. Sean Ne Teo (LS0008058)

Lot 1A, 6% Floor

Menara Pertam, Jalan BBP 2,
Taman Batu Berendam Putra

Batu Berendam, 75350 Melaka.
Tel: $6-3355210 Fax: 06-3355570

Tricor investor Services Sdn Bhd
(formerly known as Tenaga Korperat Sdn Bhd)

Level 17, The Gardens North Tower
Mid Valley City

Lingkaran Syed Putra

59200 Kuala Lumpur

Tel: 603-22643883 Fax: 603-22821886
is.enquirg@my.tricorgichal.com

Ernst & Young (AF 0039)
Chartered Accountanis

Lot 1, 6th Floor

Menara Pertam, Jalan BBP 2,
Taman Batu Berendam Putra
Batu Berendam, 75350 Melaka.

Main Market of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad
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Mr Sai Chin Hock

Age . 81

Nationality ; Malaysian

Designation/ Position in the Company : Executive Director

Date of appointmant : 26 January 2010

Cuajification : Bachelor of Commerce ({Nanyang University,
Singapore)

Wark experience : Managing Director for the past 35 years

Directorship in other Public Companies : Nl

Securities holding in the Gompany and its subsidiaries : Direct — 846,400 shares
: Deemed ~ 22,305,798 shares
Family relationship with any directors and/ or major
shareholders of the Company ;- Nif
Conflict of interest with the Company : Nil
List of conviction for offersces within the past 10 years : Ni

Mr Lim Tau Lih

Age : 52

Nationality : Malaysian

Designation/ Position in the Company : Managing Director

Date of appointment : 30 October 2008

Qualification : Member of Malaysian Instiiute of Certified Public
Accountants and Malaysian Institute of Accouniants

Wark experience : Manager of Coopers & Lybrand {1991 to 1986},

Manager of Emst & Young (1987 to 18391},
Non-Executive Partner of Lim Tau Lih & Co.

Directorship in other Public Companies 2 Nit
Securities holding ins the Company and its subsidiaries : Direct — 5,374,045 shares
: Deemed - Nil
Family relgtionship with any directors and/ or major
shareholders of the Company 2 Nit
Conflict of interest with the Company ¢ Nil

List of conviction for offences within the past 10 years © Nil

o8 Annual Reporl 2009




Tuan Haji Azhar bin Nayan

Age

Nationality

Designation / Position in the Company
Date of appointment

Qualification

Work experience

Birectorship in other Public Companies

Securities holding in the Company and its subsidiaries :
: Deemed - Nit

Family relationship with any directors and / or major
shareholders of the Company

Conflict of interest with the Company

List of convictian for offences within the past 10 years

iVir See Wan Seng

Age

Naticnality

Designation / Position in the Company
Date of appointment

Qualification

Work experience

Directorship on other Public Companias

Securities holding in the Company and its subsidiaries :
- Deemed - 18,634,888 shares

Family relationship with any director and / or major
shareholders of the Company
Conflict of interest with the Company

List of Conviction for affences within the past 10 years .

147

: Malaysian

: Non-Executive Director

: 2 Decamber 2002

: Degree in Bachelor of Science Accountancy; MBA in

Finance: Member of American Institute of Certified
Fuhlic Accountants

: Management Consultant in Ernst & Whinny; Auditor

with Arthur Andersen & Co.; General Manager in
Lembaga Tabung Haji (1289 to present); Director of
Ornapaper Industry (M) Sdn Bhd {present)

: Tafi Industries Berhad

Direct - 25,000 shares

. Nif
: Nif
- Nl

83

: Mataysian

: Executive Director

: 2 December 2002

: Bachelor of Commerce Degree from Nanyang

University Singapore

: Director & General Manager of Carton Box industriai

{M) Sdn Bhd (1990 to 1996); Director of Omapaper
Industry (M) Sdn Bhd (1995 to 2008); Director of
Tripack Packaging (M) Sdn Bhd (2004 to 2008)

: Nil

Direct - Nil

: Nil
< Nil

Nil

Annual Report 2008 0%
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Mr Siow Kee Yen

Age : 39

Nationality : Malaysian

Designation / Position in the Company : Independent Non-Execuiive Director

Date of appointment : 2 December 2002

Qualification : Member of Malaysian Insiitute of Accountants
Honours Degree in Bachelor of Accountancy

Work experience ¢ Audit Senior in Arthur Andersen & Co. (1896-1983),

Audit Manager with Chin & Co. (2000-2001}
Partner of KY Siow & Co. (2001 to present)

Directorship in other Public Companies : Nil
Securities hoiding in the Company and s subsidiaries : Direct - 130.500 shares
: Deemed - Nit
Family refationship with any directors and / or major
shareholders of the Company T Nl
Conflict of interest with the Company : Nl

List of conviction for offences within the past 10 years : Nit

Puan Adillah binti Ahmad Nordin

Age 44
Nationality : Malaysian
Designation/ Position in the Company : Independent Non-Executive Director
Date of appeintment : 2 December 2002
Qualification : LL.B {Honours)
Waork experience : English Bar & Malaysian Bar (1893 &19¢4); Advocate &
Solicitor with Adillah A. Nordin (present)
Directorship in olher Public Companies ; Nil
Securities holding in the Company and its : Dirgct - 14,000 shares
subsidiaries : Deemed — Nif
Family refationship with any directors andf or major
sharehclders of the Company > Nil
Conflict of interest with the Company » Nit

List of conviction for offences within the past 10 years : Nil

19 Annual Repert 2008




Mr Ang Kwee Teng

Age

Nationality

Designation / Position in the Company
Date of appoiniment

Qualification

Work experience

Direciorship in other Public Companies
Securitigs holding in the Company and its subsidiaries :

Profile @f D

b

160

: Malaysian

: Executive Director
: 2 December 2002

: Director of Ornapaper Induskry (M) Sdn Bhd (1995 to

present)

: Golsta Synergy Berhad

Direct - 10,000

: Deemed - 18,634,888 shares

Family retationship with any directors and / or major
shareholders of the Company

Conflict of interest with the Company

List of conviction for offences within the past 10 years :

2 Wit
;Wi

Nit
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, | have pleasure in presenting the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009,

ECONOMIC & BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

For financial year 2009 Q1 - the afiermath of the sub-prime financial crisis. For a while, it was anybody’s guess which
way the economy going, further down or turn upwards, how long the would the recovery be and how resilent we
needed to be.

A silver fightning appeared when many MNCs head quarters decided te reallocate production quota to Malaysia. Orna
and many others, especially thase entrenched in the Electronic and Electric sector benefited greatly fram this. The
group was on 5 and going down to 4 days week and all of the sudden, we were up and running & days week.

The paper mills were clearing stocks in a panic and direct cost of production quickly reduced to a manageable level in
2009 Q1 and Q2. For the remaining quarters, prices were stable and business was brisk.

The greatest set back for 2002 was the change in government’s poficy to restrict foreign labour. This resulted in across
the board labour shortages and caused great strains to labour intensive industry.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS
The Group achieved 25% growth in the profit as compared to 2008 blessed by the favourable economic enviroments

which the management capitalized on with sound management strategies.

The Group managed to achieve gross profit margin of 16% for 2009. The Board continued the tight surveillance on
operational costs and marketing activities and at the same time, pushing for higher production efficiencies.

The Group was again awarded first place for the prestigious Sony’s Best Supplier for Quality Innovation Project 2009
attesting to the Group's consisiant ability to provide quality product and service to highly esteermned customers.

PROSPECT

For 2010, the Graup face new challenges in terms of rising cost of paper rolis. The international paper containers incius-
try appears to be going through new games play, It would take more than the management’s best effort to interprest
the new rules and to respond effectively and efficiently in order to repeat 2009 success.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | wish to express my heartfelt thank and appreciation to our valued customers,
suppliers, distribustors, business associates, bankers and sharehoiders for their continuous support. | also take this
opportunity to express our gratitude and appreciation to the government, relevant authorities and officers, for their
guidance and assistance.

As always, my sincere thanks to the management and staff for their dedicated commitment and valuable contribution
to the Group whitout which the Group will not be able to outperform itself over the previous financlal year.

tim Tau Lih
fManaging Director

12 1 Annual Report 2009
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The Board of Directors ("the Board") is commitied io maintaining high standards of corporate governance
within the group and are being practiced throughout the Group towards enhancing business prosperily,
maximizing shareholders’ value and supporting excellent corporate conduct based on the recommendation of
the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance (“the Code”).

The Board further acknowledged that good corporate governance is a fundamental part of its responsibility in
managing the business and operations of the Group. The following statement sets out how the Group has
applied the Principles contained in Part 1 of the Code. The extend of the Group’s compiiance with the Best
Practices set out in Part 2 of the Code is as stated in Compliance Statement.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Balance and Composition

The Board members comprise of one (1} Managing Director, three (3) Executive Directors, one (1)
Non-Executive Director and two (2) Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Composition of the Board not
only relect the wide range of experiences, skills and knowledge required in the paper packaging industry, but
alsc professionals with diverse knowledge and skills in the areas of accounting, legal, and general
management. There is also a balanced mix of experience and expertise to effectively discharge its
stewardship responsibilities in spearheading the Group’s growth and future direction.

A profile of individual Director are set out on pages 8 to 11 0f this Annual Report.

The Board balance is reflecied through the contributions of Independent Non-Executive Direclors. The
Independent Non-Executive Directors provide objective and independent judgement to facilifaie balance
ieadership of the Group as well as to safeguard interest of the minority shareholders and other stakehalders
by ensuring the highest standard of conduct and integrity are maintained by the Group. The Neon-Executive
Director contribute significantly in areas such as poficy and strategy. performance monitoring as well as
improving governance and controls.

Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall corporate governance of the Group, including its strategic direction,
establishing goals for management and monitoring the achievernent of these goals.

The Management Committee {"MC") assists the Board in the day-to-day operations of the Group. The MC
comprises the Managing Director and heads of departments within the Group.

The Board has also delegated certain responsibiliies to other Board Committees, which operate within clearly
defined ferms of referance.

Board Meetings

The Board meets at least four (4) times a year, with additional mestings convenad as required. Notice of
Board meetings with an agenda and board paper for each agenda item to be discussed would be distributed
to ali Directors for timely and accurate information prior to the meeting.

Annual Report 2009 13
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Five {5) meetings were convened during the financial year ended 31 December 2008. Details of the atlendance
of the Directors at the meetings are as foliows:-

Director Atiendance

Lim Tau Lih 515

Ang Kwee Teng 55

See Wan Seng 575

Azhar bin Nayan 5/5

Stow Kee Yen 5/5

Adillah binti Ahmad Nordin 415

Sal Chin Hock - {Appointed to the Board on 26 January 2010)

At each meeting, the Board considers the financiat statements and results of the Group for the period ended for
each quarier, the performance of the business of the Group, new businass development proposals, policies and
strategic issues affecting the Group’s business and factors imposing potential risks in the business of the Group.

In the interval betwesen Board meetings, for exceptional matters requiring urgent Board decisions, Boards
approval are sought via circular resolutions, which are atfached with sufficient and relevant information required
for an informed decision to be made.

in accordance with the Company's Arlicles of Association, at least one third (1/3) of the Directors or the number
nearest to one-third {1/3), shall retire by rotation al each Annual General Meeting and at least once every three
{3} years. The Directors retiring from office shall be eligible far re-election by the shareholders.

Directors Training

The Directors are aware of the need for confinuous updates of their skills and knowiedge to maximize their
sffectiveness as Directors and assist them in discharging their duties during their tenure of service. During the
year, they have atiended. either collectively or individually, various programs and briefing to keep them updated
on the regulatory changes as well as future market developments in the global financial market.

The following are training programs, seminars and conferences attended by Directors of the Company in 200%:-

iy Financial Reporting During Financial Turbutence

(i} Oracle E-Business Suites Customer Workshop

(i} Seminar On Goods Governance Strategy and Sustainability
(iv) Kursus Forensic Accounting

(v} Kursus High Performance Leadership In Turbulent Times
{vi) 4th TH Corporate Directors Training Programroe

{vii) Seminar Actia Conference 2009

{viii) Kursus Coso - Based Auditing

(i) Kursus Chief Audit Executive Forum

(x) Forum South-East Asia Financial Crime Prevention & Anti-Corruption
(xi} Enterprisi Risk Management - Tools & Technigues

Board Committees

As pari of its efforts to ensure the effective discharge of its duties, the Board has delegated certain functions to
certain Committees, namely Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee with each
operating within its clearly define terms of reference. The Chairman of the various Committees will report 1o the
Board the outcome of the Committee meetings.

12 | Annual Report 2009
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The Board has esiablished the following Commitiees to assist the Board in the execution of its dulies:-

(i} Audit Commitiee

The membership, terms of reference and activities of the Audit Cornmittee are detailed in the Audit Committes
Report on pages 18 to 21 of this Annual Report.

{(ii} Nomination Committee

Siow Kee Yen (Chairman;}
Adillah binti Ahmad Nordin
Azhar bin Nayan

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee was reviewed by the Board and ail members of the
Nomination Committee were re-nominated and re-appointed. The term of office of the Nomination Commiitee
is three (3) years and may be re-nominated and re-appointed by the Board.

The Nomination Committee reviews the required mix of skills and experience and other qualities and
competencies of its Direciors. The function of the Nomination Committee is to identify and recommend
candidates to the Board and its commitiees, as well as assessing the effactiveness of the Board as a whole
and the commitiees of the Board.

{iif) Remuneration Commitiee

Adillah binti Ahraad Nordin (Chairperson)
Siow Kee Yen
Azhar hin Nayan

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Commitlee was reviewed by the Board and all the member of the
Remuneration Committee were re-nominated and re-appointed. The term of office of the Remuneration
Commitiee is three (3) years and may be re-nominated and re-appointed by the Board. The Committee is
responsivle for recommending to the Board from time to time, the remuneration packages of the Executive
Directors of the Group. The Board shall decide on the remuneration packages upon congidering the
recommendations made by the Remuneration Commities.

A Remuneration Committee meeting was held on 31 January 2008,

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION

The Company shail ensure the level and make-up of remuneration is sufficient to aitract and retain the
Directors needed to run the Company sucessfully. Currently, the Remuneralion Committee assesses the
Executive Directors' remuneration packages so as to recommend the Executive Directors’ remuneration
packages 1o the Board for approval, The Execulive Directors shall abstain from participating in the discussion
with respect to their remuneration packages. The dstalls of the Directors' Remuneration for the financial year
ended 31 Dacember 2009 are disciosed in Note 7 of the Notes fo the Financial Statement herein.

The Executive Directors’ remuneration comprises basic salary, Directors' fees and allowances. Other

customary benefits to the Group are made available as appropriate, Any salary reviews will take into account
market rates and the performance of the individual and the Group.

Annual Repori 2009 15




16 |

ORNAPAPER BERHAD

BN
rporated in Malavsia) :

n Corporate Governance

The Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration comprises fees and allowances. Determination of said
remuneration is balanced with their expected roles and responsibilities including any additional work and
contribution required.

The Board has considered the disclosure of details of the remuneration of each Director as stipulated in the
Code. The Board is of the view that the transparency and accountability aspecis of Corporate Governance as
applicahle to Director's Remuneration are appropriately served by the "band disclosure™ as required by the
Listing Requirements.

DIALOGUE WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Group recognizes the importance of communication with shareholders and investors and keeping them
informed of the Group’s developments through announcemsnts via the Bursa LINK. In addition, other
corporate information materials are available fo alt shareholders in the Company’s Annual Reports and
Circulars to Shareholders.

The Board encourages full parficipation by shareholders at the Annuat General Meetings and Extraordinary
General Meetings of the Company where opportunity are given to the shareholders to raise questions and

seek clarificationt on the business and performance of the Company.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporiing

in presenting the annual financial statements and guarterly announcements of financial results, the Board
aims to present a balanced and meaningful assessment of the Group’s financial positions and prospects. The
Board is assisted by the Audit Commitiee in overseeing the Group's financial reporting processes and
acouracy of its financial reporting.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Directors of the Company are respansible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and of the Company.

The Directors are required %o ensure that the financial statements for each financial year are properly drawn
up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965 and approved accounting slandards so as to
give a frue and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at the end of the financial
year end and of the results and cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the financial year then ended,

In preparing those financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31
December 2009, the Group has adopted the appropriate accounting policies and applied them consistently
and all applicable approved accounting standards have been followed. The financial statements are prepared
on a going concern basis.

Internal Control
The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control o

safeguard shareholders' investment and the Group's assets. This includes ensuring the review of the
adequacy and integrity of the system of infernal contro} in managing the principal risks of the Group.
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The Board has reviewed the adequacy and integrity of the Group’s state of iniernal control and the Group's
Statement on Internal Control is set out on pages 22 to 23 of this Annual Report.

Relationship with External Auditors

The role of the Audil Committee in relation 1o the external auditors is disclosed in the Report of Audil Committes
set out on pages 1810 21.

internal Audit Function

The Group’s has cutsource its Internal Audit to assist the Audit Committee in the discharge of its duties and
responsibilities. The Internal Audit function includes evaluation of the processes by which significant risks are
identified, assessed and managed. Such audits are carried out to snsure instituied conirols are appropriate,
effectively applied and within acceptable risk exposures consistent with the Group’s risk management policy. The
total cost incurred was RM 58,588,

ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE INFORMATION

Share Buybacks
During the financial year, there were no shares buybacks by the Company.

Options, Warrants or Convertible Securities
The Company did not issue any optiens, warrants or convertible securities during the financial year ended 31
December 2009,

American Deposiiory Receipt {ADR) or Global Depository Receipt (GDR) Programime
During the financial year. the Company did not sponser any ADR or GDR programme.

Sanctions andlor Penalties
The Company is not aware of any sanctions and/or penallies imposed on the Company and iis subsidiaries,
directors or management by the relevant regulatory bodies that have not been made public.

Vartation in Results
There were no material variation in results.

Non-audif fees
During the year, non-audit fees amounting to RM 24,200 were paid by the Company and its subsidiaries to the
Company's externaf auditors or a firm and its affiliates as professional fee.

Profit Guarantees
During the financial year, there were no profit guarantee given by the Company.

Material Contracts
During the financial year, there were no material contracts entered into by the Company or its subsidiaries,
involving Direciors’ and major shareholders interest.

Coniracts Relating to Loans
There were no material contracts relating to loans by the Company involving Directors and major shareholders.

Utilisation of Proceeds
The Company did not implemant any fund raising exercise during the financial year.
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MEMBERSHIP

The present members of the Audit Cornmiitee of the Company are:-

Name Designation

Siow Kee Yen (Chairman} Independent Non-Executive Director
Adillah binti Ahmad Nordin Independent Non-Executive Director
Azhar bin Nayan Non-independent Non-Executive Director

TERMS OF REFERENCE
Composition of members

The Board shall appoint the Audit Commitiee members from amongst themselves, comprising no fewer than
three (3) non-executive directors. The majority of the Audit Committee members shall be independent directors.

in this respect, the Board adopts the definition of “independent director” as defined under the Listing Require-
ments of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad {“Bursa Securities”).

All members of the Audit Committee shall be financially literate and at least one (1) member of the Audit
Committes must be:-

ta)  a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountant (‘MIA"); or
{b) if he is not a member of MIA, he must have at least three (3) years of working expetience and:
i. he must have passed the examinations specified in Part | of the First Schedule of the Accountants
Act 1967, or
i. he must be a member of one of the associations of the accountants specified in Part If of the First
Schedule of the Accountanis Act 1867; or
{¢) fulfils such other requirements as prescribed by Bursa Securities.

No alternate director of the Board shali be appointed as a member of the Audit Committee.

The term of office ang performance of the Audit Committee and each of its members shall be reviewed by the
Board at least once every three (3) years to determine whether such Audit Committee and members have carried
out their duties in accordance with their terms of reference.

Retirement and resignation

I a member of the Audit Committee resigns, dies, or for any reason ceases to be a member with the result that
the number of members is reduced below three (3}, the Board shali within three (3) months of the event appoint
such number of the new members as may be required to fill the vacancy.

Chairman

The members of the Audit Commitiee shalt elect a Chairman from amongst their number who shall be an
independent director.

in the absence of the Chairman of the Audit Commitiee, the other members of the Audit Commitles shall
amongst themselves elect a Chairman who must be independent director 1o chair the meeting.

Secretary

The Company Secretary shall be the Sscretary of the Audit Committee and as a reporting procedure, the
Minutes shall be circulated to all members of the Board,
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Mieeting

The Audit Committee shall meet regularly, with due notice of issues to be discussed, and shall record ifs
conclusions in discharging its duties and responsibilities. In addition, the Chairman may call for additional
meetings at any time at the Chairman’s discretion.

Upor the request of the external auditor, the Chairman of the Audit Commitiee shall convene & meeling of the
Audit Carmittee to consider any matier the external auditor believes should be brought fo the attention of the
directors or shareholders.

Notice of Audit Commitiee meetings shall be given to all the Audit Committee members unless the Audit
Committee waives such requirement,

The Chairman of the Audit Commitiee shall engage on a continuous basis with senior management, such as the
Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, the Finance Director, the head of iniernal audit and the external auditars
in order to be kept informed of matters affecting the Company.

The head of internal audii and a representative of the external auditors should normally attend meetings, Other
Board members and emplovees may attend meetings upon the invitaiion of the Audit Committee. However, the
Audit Committee shall meet with the external auditors without executive Board members present at least twice
a year and whenever necessary.

Questions arising at any meeting of the Audit Commiitee shall be decided by a majority of votes of the members
present, and in the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the Audit Committee shall have a second or
casiing vote.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2009, a total of four (4) meetings were held, details of which are as
foliows:

Name Attendance
Siow Kee Yen 4i4

Adiliah binti Ahmad Nordin 4/4

Azhar bin Nayan Ald

Minutes

Minutes of each meeting shall be kept at the registered office and distributed fo each member of the Audit
Cormmenittee and also to the other members of the Board. The Audit Committee Chairman shall report on each
meeting io the Board.

The minutes of the Audit Committee meeting shall be signed by the Chairman of the meeting at which the
proceadings were held or by the Chairman of the next succeeding meeting.

Quorum

The quorum for the Audit Committee meeting shall be the majority of members present whom must be
independent directors,

Objectives

The principat objectives of the Audit Commiltee are to assist the Board in discharging its statutory duties and
responsibilities refating to accounfing and reporting practices of the holding company and each of its
subsidiaries. in addition, the Audit Committee shall:
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{(a) evaluate the quality of the audits performed by the internal and external auditors;

{b) provide assurance that the financial inforration presented by management is relevant, reliable and timely;
(c} oversee compliance with iaws and regulations and observance of a proper code of conduct and

(d) determine the quality, adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's control environment.

Authority

The Audit Committee shail, in accordance with a procedure o be determined by the Board and at the expense
of the Company,

(@)

(b)

()

(@)

(e)

have explicit authority to investigate any matter within its terms of reference, the resources io do so,
and full access to information. All employees shali be directed to co-operate as requested by
members of the Audit Committes.

have full and unlimitedfunrestricted access tc alf information and documents/resources which are
required to perform its duties as well as to the internal and external auditors and senior menagement
of the Company and Group.

abtain independent professional or other advice and to invite outsiders with relevant expetience to
attend, if necessary.

have direct communication channels with the external auditors and person(s) carrying out the infernal
audit function or activity (if any).

where the Audit Cammittee is of the view that the matter reported by it to the Board has not Deen
satisfactorily resolved resulting in a breach of the Listing Requirements, the Audit Cornmittee shail
promptly report such matter to Bursa Secuiities.

Duties and Responsibilities

The duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are as follows:-

(@)

(b)

{c)

(d)

(e)

U]

To consider the appointment of the external auditor, the audit fee and any question of resignation or
dismissal;

To discuss with the external auditor before the audit commences, the nature and scope of the audit,
and ensure co-ordination where more than one audit firm is involved;

To review with the external auditor his evaluation of the system of internal controls and his audit
report;

To review the guarterly and year-end financial statements of the Board, focusing particularly on -

° any change in accounting policies and practices;

. significant adjustments arising from the audit;

. the going concern assumplion; and

s compliance with accounting standards and cther legal requirements.

To discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim and final audits, and any matter the
auditor may wish to discuss {in the absence of management, where necessary),

To review the external auditor's management fetter and management's response;
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To do the foliowing, in relation to the internal audit function:-

u review th.e adequacy of the scope, functions and resources of the internal audit function,
and that it has the necessary authority to carry out its work;

n review the internal audit programme and results of the internal audit process and, where
necessary, ensure thal appropriate actions are iaken on the recommendations of the
internal audit function;

" review any appraisal or assessment of the performance of members of the internal audit
function;
" approve any appointment or termination of senior staff members of the inlernal audit

function; and
. take cognizance of resignations of internal audit staff membars and provide the resigning

staff member an opportunity to submit his reasons for resigning.

To consider any related party transactions and conflict of interest situation that may arise within the
Company or Group including any transaction, procedure or course of conduct that raises questions of
management integrity;

To report its findings on the financial and management performance, and other material matters to
the Board;

To consider the major findings of internal investigations and management’s response;

To verify the allocation of employees' share option scheme ("ESOS”) in compliance with the criteria
as stipulated in the by-laws of ESOS of the Company, if any;

To determine the remit of the internal audit funclion,
To consider other topics as defined by the Board; and

To consider and examine such other matters as the Audit Commitiee considers appropriate.

ACTIVITIES OF THE COMMITTEE DURING THE YEAR

The Audit Committes (s empowsred to carry out the following duties during the financial year under review in
accordance with its term of reference :

{a)

(b)
(¢}
(d

Reviewsd the external auditors’ scope of work and audit plans for the year. Prior to the audit,
representaiives from the external auditors presented their audit strategy and plan.

Reviewed with the external auditors, major issues arising from the audil.

Reviewad the Group's internal audit ptan,

Reviewed the internal audit reports. The Audit Committee was briefed on the audit reports issued and
on the issues raised by the Internal Auditors on various aspects of the system in operation, practices
and procedures and internal controls. Special notice was taken of significant issues raised in the audit
reports and that adequate corrective actions had been taken by the Operating Management to rectily
the weaknesses.
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Statement On Internal Control

INTROBDUCTION

Pursuant to paragraph 15.26 (b} of the Main Market Listing Requirements of the Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad {Bursa Securities), the Board is pleased to provide the foliowing statement on the state of internal
control of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2009, which has been prepared in accor-
dance with the Statement on Internal Control - Guideline for Directors of Public Listed Companies issued by
the Institute of Internal Auditors Malaysia and adopted by the Bursa Securities.

BOARD RESPONSIBILITY

The Beard recognises that it is responsibie for the Group's system of internal control and for reviewing its
adequacy and infagrity.

Tha Group's sysiem of internal control is designed to manage the principal business risks thai may impede
the Group for achieving its business objectives. Notwithstanding, as with any internal control system, ihe
Group's system of internal cantrol Is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives. In pursuing those objectives, these systems can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Board recognises that effective risk management is part of good business management practices. The
Enterprise Risk Management Framework allows the Group to identiy, evaluate and manage risks within
defined risk parameters that affect the achievement of the Group's business objectives,

Whilst the Board is ultimately responsible for identifying the Group’s risks, the implementation and the establish-
inent of the Group's Risk Management Framework ars delegated to the Management Committee who plays a
pivotal tole in continuously monitoring the implementation of the mitigating action plans and assessing
the relevance and adeguacy of the risk management and control process in light of changes to the Group's
risk profiie.

INTERNAL CONTROL MECHANISM

The Board entrusts the daily running of the business to the Managing Director ("MD"} and his management
team. The MD and his management team receive timely information pertaining to performance and
profitabifity of the Group through monthly and weekly reports which include guantitative and qualitative
rends and analyses.

The MD plays a pivotal role in communicating the Board's expectations of the systems of internal control to
management. This is achieved, on a day-to-day basis, through his active participation in the operations of the
business as well as aftendance at various scheduled Managemeni Committee meetings. The Executive
Directors meet with the Departmental Managers weekly to discuss Production, Operational, Sales and
Human Resource issues and monitors the progress of these issues through daily interaction with the
management {earmn,
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The other key elements of the Group’s existing system of internal controls are as follows:

* Quality Policy that ciearly outlines the Group’s direction.

* Clear arganisation structure with developed reporting lines that are |SO compliant.

* Scheduted Management Commitiee meetings involving the review of the Group's operations, financial
performance and human reseurce matiers.

* Monthly reports to the MD containing both financial and non-financial information.

* An implicit undersianding of the Company's authority limits,

* Structured training for employees based on the annual training plan.

* An independent internal audit function,

* Internal Quality Audits as specified by (SO for cerlain subsidiaries. Results of these audits are reported to
the MD,

The system of internal cantrols was satisfactory and there has been no significant breakdown or weakness in
the system of internal control of the Group that might have resulted in material losses incurred by the Group
for the financial vear ended 31 December 2008. The Group continues to take necessary measures to
strengthen its internal control structure and manage iis risks.

ASSURANGE MECHANISM

The Audit Committee (“AC"} is tasked by the Board with the duty of reviewing and monitoring
the effectiveness of the Group's systems of internal control.

The Company has an independent internal audit function to conduct review on internal controls. During the
financial year, the internal audit function has been fully cutsourced to a professional service provider fiem and
reports directly to the AC. The outseurced internal audit function reviews the key activities of the Group on
the basis of an annual audit plen approved by the AC. Reports and corrective actions arising from internal
audit reviews are reported fo the AC,

CONCLUSION

The Board remains commitied towards keeping with the ever-changing business envirenment in arder to
support the Group's business and size of operaiions. Cognisant of this fact, the Board in striving for
continuous improvement will put in place appropriate action plans, when necessary, to further enhance the

Group's system of internal control.

The Statement is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors on 19 May 2010.
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Directors’ Rép@;;; B

The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited {inancial
statements of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2009,

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and provision of management
services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are manufacturing and sale of corrugated
boards and carfon boxes,

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these principal aclivities during the
financial year.

Results
Group Company
Rivt RM
Praofit for the year 4,806,094 1,213,081
Atiributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 4,604,882 1,213,081
Minority interests 201,212

4,806,094 1,213,081

There were no material iransfers to or from reserves or provisions dusing the financial year other
than as disclosed in the financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors, the results of the operations of the Group and af the Company
during the financial year were nol substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a
material and unusual nature.

Dividend

The amount of dividends paid by the Company since 31 December 2008 was as foliows:

Rt
Interim tax exempt dividend of 1% on 75,250,801 erdinary shares paid on
15 December 2009 for the financial year ended 31 December 2009 : 752,506

The diractors do not recommend any final dividend to be paid in respect of the current financial
year.

Directors

The names of the directors of the Company in office since the date of the last report and at the
date of this report are :

Lim Tau Lin

Tuan Haji Azhar bin Nayan

See Wan Seng

Siow Kee Yen

Adillah binti Ahmad Nordin

Ang Kwee Teng

Sai Chin Hock (appointed on 286 January 2010)
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Directors’ benefits

Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that year, did there subsist any
arrangement to which the Company was a party, whereby the directors might acquire benefits by
meaans of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled fo
receive a benefit {other than benefits included in the aggregate amount of emolurnents received
or due and receivable by the directors or the fixed salary of a full-time amployee of the Company
as shown in Note 7 o the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the Company or
a related corporation with any director or with a firm of which he is a member, or with a company
in which he has a substantial financial inferest, except as disclesed in Note 30 to the financial
statements.

Directors' inferests

According to the register of directors' shareheldings, the interests of directors in office at the end
of the financial year in shares in the Company and its related corporations during the financial
year were as follows:

Number of ordinary shares of RM1 each

1.1.2009 Acquired Sold 31.12.2009
Direct interest
Lim Tau Lik 5,374,045 - - 5,374,045
Tuan Haji Azhar bin Nayan 25,0400 - - 25,000
Siow Kee Yen 130,500 - - 130,500
Adillah binti Ahmad Nordin 14,000 - - 14,00C
Ang Kwee Teng 10,000 - - 10,000

Number of ordinary shares of RM1 each

1.1.2008 Acquired Sold 31.12.2009
Indirect interest
See Wan Seng 18,634,888 - - 18,634,888
Ang Kwee Teng 18,634,888 - - 18,634,688

Ang Kwee Teng and See Wan Seng, by virtue of their interests in shares in the Company, are
also deemed interested in shares in all the Company's subsidiaties to the extent that the
Company has an interest.

Qther siatutory information

(a) Before the income statements and balance sheets of the Group and of the Company were
made out, the directors togk reasonable steps:

(i) to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation lo the writing off of bad debts
and the making of provision far doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that all known
bad debts had been written off and that adequate provision had been made for doubtful
debts; and

(iiy to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their values as shown in

the accounting records in the ordinary course of business had been written down to an
amount which they might be expected so to realise.
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Other statutory information {continued}
(b) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumnstances which would:

(i} render the amount writien off as bad debts or the amount provided for as doubtful debts
inadequate io any substantial extent; and

(iy render the values atiributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the
Group and of the Company misieading.

{c} Atthe daie of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have
arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or
liabilitles of the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate.

{d) Atthe date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise

dealt with in this report or financial statements of the Group and of the Company which
would render any amount stated in the financial statements misieading.

(e} As at the date of this report, there does not exist:-

tiy any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the
end of the financial year which secures the labilities of any other person; or

(iy any contingsnt liability of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end
of the financial year.

{f) In the opinion of the directors:-

{i) no contingent or other liabliity has become enforceable or is likely to become
enforceable within the petiod of twelve months after the end of the financial year which
will or may affect the ability of the Group or of the Company to meet its obligations when
they fall due; and

(iy no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval
between the end of the financial year and the date of this report which is likely to affect

substantially the results of the operations of the Group or of the Company for the
financial year in which this report is made.

Audifors

The auditors, Ermnst & Young, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 28 April 2010.

Lim Tau Linh Ang Kwee Teng

Melaka, Malaysia
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Statement by directors
Pursuant to Section 169 (15} of the Companies Act, 1965

We, Lim Tau L and Ang Kwee Teng , being two of the directors of Ornapaper Berhad, do
hereby state that, in the opinion of the directors, the accompanying financial statements sef out
on pages 31 ta 73 are drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965
and Financial Reporting Standards in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2008 and of the results and the
cash fiows of the Group and of the Company for the year then ended.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resoelution of the directors dated 28 April 2010.

Lim Tau Lik Ang Kwee Teng

Melaka, Malaysia

Statutory declaration
Pursuant to Section 169 {16) of the Companies Act, 1865

. Lim Tau Lih, being the director primarily responsible for the financial management of
Ornapaper Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the accompanying financial
staiements set out on pages 31 to 73 are in my opinion correct, and | make this solemn
declaration conscientiously believing the same to be frue and by virtue of the provisions of the
Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by

the abovenamed Lim Tau Lih at Melaka
in the State of Melaka on 28 Aprii 2010 Lim Tau Lih

Before me,

CHOO YONG CHUAN
Commissioner for Oaths
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Report on the financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of Ornapaper Berhad, which comprise the balance
sheets as at 31 December 2009, and the income statements, statements of changes in equity
and cash flow statements for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes, as set out on pages 31 to 73,

Directors’ responsibility for the finarnicial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of hese
financial statemenls in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act,
1965 in Malaysia. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonabie in the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards en auditing in Malaysia, Those
standards raquire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit invalves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment,
including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due tc fraud or error, In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to
the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting palicies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentatian of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have ohiained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion,
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Opinion

{n our opinion, the financial statemenis have been properly drawn up in accordance with
Financial Reportting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as 1o give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2002
and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended,

Repart on other legal and regulatory requiremenis

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the
following:

{a) In our opinion, the accounting and othar records and the registers required by the Act to be
kept by the Company and by its subsidiaries of which we have acted as auditors have been
properiy kept in accordance with the provisions of the Acl.

{(b) We have considerad the financial statements and the auditors’ report of the subsidiaries of
which we have not acted as auditors, which are indicated in Note 16 to the financial
statements.

(c) We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been
consolidated with the financial statements of the Company are in form and content
appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements and we have received satisfaciory information and explanations required by us
for those purposes.

{dy The auditors’ reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries were not subjecti to any
qualification and did not include any comment required fo be made under Section 174(3) of
the Act.

Other matiers
This report is made solely io the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with

Section 174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpese. We do not
assume responsibility to any cther person for the content of this report.

Emstl & Young Lee Ah Too
AF: 0039 2187109111
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accouniant

Melaka, Malaysia
Date: 28 April 2010
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Income Statements

(For The Year Ended 31 December 2009)

Continuing operations
Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Administrative expenses
Selling and marketing expenses
Other expenses

Operating profit/(loss)
Finance income

Finance costs

Profit/(loss) before {ax

Tax expense

Profit/(loss) for the year from
continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Profit for the year from
discontinued operations
Profiti{loss} for the year

Agiributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interesis

Earnings per share atiributable
{o equity holders of the
Company (sen):

Basic (Continuing operations)
Basic (Discontinued operations)
Basic, for profils for the year

Diluted (Continuing operaticns)
Diluted {Discontinued operations}
Dilsied, for profit for the year

Tne accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

Note

3

10
10
10

10
10
10

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
RM RM RM RM
156,461,455 190,686,153 1,559,554 200,000
(125,768,738} (161,525 447) - -
30,692,717 29,080,706 1,659,554 200,000
859,170 663,372 674 -
(6,694,300) {6,482,6808) (246,708) {167,463)
{10,302,008)  (11,766,495) (3.533) {5,664)
{5,161,499) (4,697,146} {91,526) {590,890}
9,194,079 6,777,831 1,218,461 {564.017)
7,800 28,701 79 843
{3,043,548) (4,865,027) {421} (29,804)
6,158,331 1,939,505 1,218,119 (592,978)
{(1.352,237) {757,398) (5,038} (20,340)
4,806,094 1,182,107 1,243,081 (613,318}
- 2,792,360 - -
4,808,094 3,974.467 1213081 {613,318}
4,604,882 2,584,484 1,213,081 (613,318)
201,212 1,389,983 - -
4,806,084 3.974487 1.213,081 (613,318}
8.1 1.4
- 2.0
6.1 3.4
6.1 1.4
- 2.0
6.1 3.4
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Balance Sheets
As At 31 December 2009

Group Company
Noie 20098 2008 2009 2008
RW RM RM RM
Assets

Non=current assets

Properly, plant and equipment 12 73,044,140 72,563,670 - -
Prepaid land lease payments 14 14,177,105 14,420,255 - -

Goodwill 15 1,633,024 1,633,024 - -
Investment in subsidiaries 16 - - 75,585,432 76,585,432
Other investments 17 254,400 254 400

89,108,869 £8,871,349 75585432 75585432

Current assets

inventcries 18 23,134,256 21,674,465 - -
Trade receivables 19 61,161,201 58,881,277 - -
Cther receivables 20 3,522,758 3,738,962 10,731,203 10,509,482
Tax recoverable 536,954 431,671 85,465 47,965
Cash and bank balances 21 13,564,890 5,015,359 250,661 40,755
101,620,058 89.741.734 11,076,328 10,588,202
Total assets 191,028,728 178.613.083 86,661,761 86,183,634

Equity and liabilities

Equity attributable to equity

holders of the Company
Share capital 22 75,250,801 75,250,601 75,250,601 75,250,601
Share premium 23 11,155,900 11,155,800 11,155,200 11,155,900
Retained earnings/

{Accumulated losses) 24 13,208,071 9,355,685 205,078 {255,497}
Shareholders’ equity 96,614,572 95,762,196 86,611,579 86,151,004
Minority interests 536,218 338,007 -
Total eguity 100,150,791 96,087,203 86,611,573 85,151,004
Non-current Habilities
Borrowings 25 5,139,648 6,008,235 - -
Deferred tax liabilitles 27 3,113,006 3,074.898 - -
Non-current liabilities 8,252,654 9,083,133 - -

Group Company
Note 2009 2008 2009 2008
RM RM RM RM
Current liabifities

Borrowings 25 58,909,874 60,137,460 - -
Trade payables 28 15,701,648 7,105,099 - -
Other payables 5,716,601 5,659,998 50,182 32,830
Current tax payable 297.160 330,180 - -

81,625,283 73,432,747 50,182 32,630
Total liabilities 90,877,937 82,515,880 50,182 32,630
Total equity and liabilities 191,028,728 178,813,083 86,661,761 86,183,634

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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(For The Year Ended 31 December 2009)
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NAPAPER BERE.

{{InGorparated in Malaysia)

Statements

§€Eﬁngeg In Equity

(For The Year Ended 31 December 2009)

<— Non-distributable — Distributable

Retained
earnings/
Share Share (accumulated
capital premium losses) Total
RM RM RM RM
Company
At 1 January 2008 75,250,601 11,155,900 1,110,327 87,516,828
Dividend {Note 11) - - (752,506} {782,508)
Loss for the year, representing total
recognised income and expense
for the year - - (613.318) ($13.318)
At 31 December 2008 75,250,601 11,155,800 (255,497) 86,151,004
Dividend {Note 11} - - (752,508) (752,506}
Profit for the year, representing total
recognised income and expense
for the year - - 1.213.081 1,213,081
At 31 December 2009 75,250,601 11,155,800 205,078 86,611,579

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Cash Flow States ents

(For The Year Ended 31 December 2009)

Cash flows from operating
activities

Profit/(ioss) before tax:

- Continuing operations

- Discontinued operations
Adjustments for :

Bad debts writien off
Depreciation and amortisation:
- Property, plant and equipment
- Prepaid land lease payments
(Gain)loss on disposal of:

- Property, plant and eguipment
- Investment property

- Investment in subsidiaries
Provision for doubtfut debts
Dividend income

interest expense

Interest income

Operating profit/{loss) before
working capital changes
Increase in inventories

{Increase)/decrease in receivables

Increasef{decrease} in payables
Cash generated from/(used in)
operations

Interest paid

Interest received

Taxes {paid)refunded

MNet cash generated from/f{used in}

operating activities

Note

12
14

9(d)

Group Company
2008 2008 2008 2008
R R RV R
6,158,331 1,939,505 1,218,119 (6592,978)
- 2,792,360 - -
18,960 3,888 - -
6,359,684 6,187,825 - -
243,150 246,244 - -
{272,204) (91,440} - -
- (10,758} . -
- (241,772} - 481,306
734,402 2,158,617 - -
{70} (772) (1,350,000} -
3.043,548 4,865,027 421 29,804
(7,800) (26.701) (79) (843)
16,278,001 17,822,023 {131,539) (82,621)
(1,459,791} {614.,482) - -
(2,817,080} 9,459,450 (221,721)  (5,804,138)
8,453,150  (14,694,730) 17,552 (23,294)
20,454,280 14,972,261 (335,708) (5,910,053)
(3,043,548)  (4,865,027) (421} (29,804}
7,800 26,701 79 843
(14582442  {1,096.010) (5,038) 82,630
15,866,090 6,037,925 {341,088) (5,856,384)
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NAPAPER BERH,
.n.:m.xjparaied in Malaysiaj . .
Cash Flow Statements
(For The Year Ended 31 December 2009)

Group Company
Note 2009 2008 2008 2008
RM RM RM RM
Cash flows from investing
activities
Net dividends received 70 772 1,312,500 -
Purchase of:
- Property, plant and equipment 12(c) (3.349,4588) (3,815,258}
- Other investments - (10,000) - -
Proceeds from disposal of:
- Property, plant and equipment 541,518 1,941,223 - -
- Investment property - 420,000 - -
- Subsidiaries 9(d) - 4,711,802 - 8,430,207
Net cash (used in)/generated from
investing activities {2,807.880) 3.248.539 1,312,500 8,430,207
Cash flows from financing
activities
{Repayment)/drawdown of term loans (456,070) 13,167,323 - (1,851,174)
Payment of dividend (752,508) - (752,508) {752,5086)
Repayment of finance iease payabies (3.274,255) (3,328,429 - -
Increasef{decrease) in short term
borrowings 530,899  (14,487,581) - -
Net cash used in financing activities {3,951,932) (4,648,6897) {752,608) (2,803,680)

Cash and cash equivalenis

Net increasef/(decrease) during the year 0,206,278 4,637,767 218,906 (29,857)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes - (1,464,943} - -

At beginning of year (856,825) (4,029,649} 40,755 70,812
At end of year 21 8,349,453 {856,825) 259,661 40,755

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes To The Financial Statements
31 December 2009

Corporate information

The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia,
and is listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The principal place of
business is situated at No. 8998, Kawasan Perindustian Peringkat IV, Batu: Berendam,
75350 Melaka, Malaysia.

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and provision of management
services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are manufacturing and sale of corrugated
boards and carton boxes. There have been no significant changes in the nature of the
principal activities during the financial year,

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance

with a resolution of the directors on 28 April 2010.

Significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements comply with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965 and
Financial Reporting Standards in Malaysia {"FRS").

The financial statements of the Company have also been prepared on a historical basis,
uniess ctherwise indicated in the accounting policies below.

The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM).
2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies
{a) Subsidiaries and basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the ability to control the
financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from their activities. The
existence and effect of any potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group has such power
over another entity.

In the Company's separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less impairment losses. On disposal of such investments, the
difference between net disposal proceeds and their carrying amounts is included
in profit or loss.
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_(lr‘morporaied in Malaysiaj}

Notes To The Financial Statements
- 31 December 2009

2. Significant accounting policies (continuad)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

{a) Subsidiaries and basis of consolidation (continued)

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries as at the balance sheet date. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared using the same reporting date as the
Company. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases. In preparing the consolidated financial statemants,
intragroup balances, transactions and unrealised gains or losses are eliminated in
full. Uniform accounting policies are adopted in the consolidated financial
statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for using the purchase method. The
purchase method of accounting involves allocating the cost of the acquisition to
the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed at the date of acquisition. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of the assets given, Habilities
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued, plus any costs directly
attributable to the acquisition.

Any excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the identifizble assetls, liabilities and contingent liabilities represents
goodwill. Any excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, labilities and contingent fiabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised
immediately in profit or foss.

Minority interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets in
subsidiaries not held by the Group. 1t is measured at the minorities’ share of the
fair value of the subsidiaries’ identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition
date and the minorities' share of changes in the subsidiaries’ equity since then.

(b) Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being the
excess of the cost of business combination cver the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Following the
initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is not amortised but is, instead, reviewed for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amouni of goodwill refating to the entity sofd.
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Notes To The Hﬁmdé

| Statements
31 December 2009

2. Significant accounting policies {continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

{c}

(d)

Property, ptant and equipment and depreciation

All items of property, ptant and equipment are initially recorded at cost.
Subsegquent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the itern will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depraciation of property, plant and equipment is provided for on a straight line
basis 1o write off the cost of each asset to its residual value over the estimated
useful life at the following annual rates:

Factory buildings 2%
Plant and machinery, factory equipment and electrical installation 5% o 20%
Other assets 10% to 20%

The residual vaiues, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each
financial year-end to ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation
are consisient with previous estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of
the future economic benefiis embodied in the items of property, plant and
equipment.

An item of property, piant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal of when
no fuiure economic benefils are expecied from its use or disposal. The difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the camying amount is recognised
in profit or loss.

investment properties

Investment properties are properties which are held either to earn rental income or
for capital appreciation or for both. Such properties are initially measured at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to recognition, investment properties are
stated af cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses, Freehold land is not depreciated.

investment properties are derecognised upon disposal or upon permanent
withdrawal from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.
Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposai of an investment property are
recagnised in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

A property interest under an aperating lease is classified and acceunted for as an
investment property on a property-by-property basis when the Group holds it to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Any such property interest under
an operating lease classified as an investment property is carried at cost.
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31 December 2009

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Annual Report 2009

Impairment of non-financial asseis

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets, other than inventories and tax
recoverable, are reviewed at each balance sheel date to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated to determine the amount of impairment loss.

For goodwili, the recoverable amount is estimated at each balance sheet date or
more frequently when indicators of impairment are identified.

For the purpose of impairment testing of these assets, recoverable amount is
determined on an individual asset basis uniess the asset does not generate cash
flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. [f this is the case,
recoverable amount is determinad for the cash-generating unit ("CGU") to which
the asset belongs to. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s CGUs, or groups of CGUs, that
are expected {0 henefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned io those units or
groups of units.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an assel’s or CGU's fair value less
cosis to sell and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present vaiue using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of meney and the risks
specific to the asset. Where the carrying amount of an assel exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down o its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respact of a CGU or groups
of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to thase units or groups of units and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit or groups of units on a pro-rata basis.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
Impairment loss on goodwilt is not reversed in a subsequent period. An
impairment loss for an asset other than goodwill is reversed if, and only if, there
has bsen a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recegnised. The carrying amount of an
asset other than goodwill is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided
that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of amortisation or depreciation} had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss for an asset
ather than goodwill is recognised in profit or loss,
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31 December 2009

2. Significant accounting policies {continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accournting policies {continued)

(®

(g)

inventories
inveniories are stated at lower of cost and ret realisable value.

Cost is determined using the weighted average msthad. The cost of raw materials
comprises costs of purchase. The costs of finished goods and work-in-progress
comprise costs of raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and appropriate
proportions of manufacturing overheads based on normat operating capacity.

Met realisabte value is the estimated seliing price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has
become a party o the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial instrumenis are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses
relating o a financial instrument classified as a liability, are reported as expense or
income. Distributions to holders of financial insteursents classified as equity are
recognised directly in equity. Financial instruments are offset when the Group has
a legally enforceable right to offset and intends to settle either on a net basis orto
realise the asset and seiile the liability simultaneously.

(i} Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand and at bank, net of any outstanding bank overdrafts.

{ii) Other non-current investments
Non-current investments other than investmenis in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less impairment losses. On disposal of such an investment, the
difference between net disposal proceeds and its carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss,

(iii}y Receivables
Trade and othar receivables are carried at anticipated realisable values. Bad

debts are written off when identified. An estimate is made for doubtfui debts
based on a review of all outstanding amounts as at the balance sheet daie.

{iv} Payables

Trade and other payables are stated at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Summary of significant accounting policles (continued}
{g) Finzncial instruments {continued)
(v} Interest-bearing borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recagnised at the fair value of the
consideration received lass directly attributable transaction costs. After initiat
recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

{vi} Equity instrumenis

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are
recognised in equity in the period in which they are declared.

The transaction costs of an equity fransaction are accounted for as a
deduction from equity, net of tax. Equity fransaction costs comprise only
those incremental external costs directly attributable to the equity ransaction
which would otherwise have been avoided.

(h) Leases
(i} Classification

A lease is recognised as a finance lease if it transfers substantially to the
Group all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. Leases of properties
are classified as operating or finance leases in the same way as leases of
other assets and the land and building elements of a lease of property are
considerad separately for ihe purposes of lease classification. All leases that
do nol fransfer substantially all the risks and rewards are classified as
operating ieases, with the following exception:

- Properiy held under operating leases that would otherwise mest the
definition of an investment property is classified as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis and, if classified as investment
property, is accounted for as if held under a finance lease; and

- Land held for own use under an aperating lease, the fair value of which
cannot be measured separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted for as baing held
uncler a finance lease, unless the building is also clearly heid under an
operating lease.

42 1 Annual Report 2009




2.

Notes To The Hﬁanda@;ﬁ Smmﬁemg

31 December 2009

Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2  Summary of significant accounting policies {continued}

(h) Leases (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

Finance leases - the Group as lessee

Assets acquited by way finance leases are stated at an amount squal to the
lower of their fair values and the present value of the minimum leass
paymenis at the inception of the leases, less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. The corresponding liability is included in the balance sheet
as horrowings. In ¢alculating the present value of the minimum lease
payments, the discount factor used is the interest rate implicil in the lease,
when il is practicable to determine; otherwise, the Group's incremental
borrowing rate is used. Any initial direct costs are alsc added to the carrying
amount of such assets.

Lease payments are apportioned between the finance costs and the
reduction of the oufstanding liability. Finance costs, which represent the
difference between the {oial leasing commitments and the fair value of the
assets acquired, are recognised in the profit or loss over the term of the
relevant lease so as {o produce a constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the abligations for each accounting pericd.

The depreciation policy for leased assets is in accordance with that for
depreciable property, plant and equipmeant as described in Note 2.2(c).

Operating leases - the Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. The aggregate benefii of incentives
provided by the lessor is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basts.

In the case of a lease of property, the minimum lease payments or the up-
front payments made are allocated, whenever necessary, between the jand
and the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values for lsasehold
interest in the land and building elements of the lease at the inception of the
lease. The up-front payment represents prepaid lease payments and are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Operating leases - the Group as lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are presented on the balance
sheats according to the nature of the assets. Rental income from operating
feases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
on a straight-line hasis over the lease term.
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31 December 2009

2. Significant accounting policies {coniinued}

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

(i)

)

Annual Report 2008

income tax

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax,
Current tax is the expected amount of income taxes payable in respect of the
taxable profil for the year end and is measured using the tax rates that have been
enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is provided for, using the liability method, on temporary differences at
the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and fabililies and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. In principle, deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tex assets are
recognised for alt deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused
tax credils to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused
tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a
business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting
profit nor taxabie profit.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the asset is realised or the Hability is settled, based on fax rates that have
been enacled or substantively enacted ai the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is
recognised as income or an expense and included in the profit or loss for the
period, except when it arises from a transaction which is recognised directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised directly in equity, or when
it arises from a husiness combination that is an acquisition, in which case the
deferred iax is included in the resulting goodwill or the amount of any excess of
the acquirer's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable asssts,
fiabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of the combination.

Employee benefits
{i) Short term benefiis

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as
an expense in the year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees, Short term accumulating compensated absences such as paid
annual leave are recognised when services are rendered by employees that
increase thelr entitlement to future compensated absences. Short term non-
accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave are recognised
when the absences occur.
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Notes To The Financial
31 December 2009

Statements

2. Significant 2ccounting policies {continued)
2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
{iy Employee benefits {continued)
(i} Defined contributions plans

Defined coniribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into separate entities or funds and will
nave no legal or constructive obligation fo pay further contributions if any of
the funds do not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee bengfits relaling to
employee services in the current and preceding financial years. Such
contributions are recognised as an expense in the profit or loss as incurred.
As reguired by taw, companies in Malaysia make such contributions to the
Employees Provident Fund. Some of the Group's foreign subsidiaties also
make contributions 1o their respective countries' statutory pension schemaes.

{k} Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefils

will fiow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following

specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

(i) Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised net of sales taxes and upon transfer of significant
risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer. Revenue is not recognised to
the extent where there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the
consideration due, associated costs or the possible return of goods.

(iiy Dividend incoms

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

{iii} Management fee

Management fee is recognised when service is rendered.

{I} Foreign currencies
(i} Functional and presentation currency

The individual financial staterents of each entily in the Group are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entities
operate (“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is also the functional currency of
and of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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2. Significant accounting policies {continued)

2,2 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

(I} Foreign currencies (continued)
(il Foreign currency transactions

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities in the Group,
fransactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency {foreign
currencies) are recorded in the functional currencies using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
translated.

Exchange differences arising from the setlement or translation of monetary
items are included in profit or loss for the period except for exchange
differences arising on monelary items that form part of the Group's net
investment in foreign operation. Exchange differences arising on monetary
iterns that form part of the Group's net investment in foreign opsration, where
that monetary item is denominated in either the functional currency of the
reporting enlity or the Toreign operation, are initially taken directly lo the
foreign currency translation reserve within equity until the disposal of the
foreign operations, at which time they are recognised in profit or loss,

Exchange differences arising on monetary items that form part of the Group’s
net investment in foreign operation, where that monetary item is denominated
in & currency other than the functional currency of either the reporting entity
or the foreign operation, are recognised in profit or loss for the period.
Exchange differences arising on monetary items that form part of the
Company's net investment in foreign operation, regardiess of the currency of
the monetary item, are recognised in profit or loss in the Company's financial
statemnents or the individuai financial statements of the foreign operation, as
appropriaie.

(iii} Foreign operations

The results and financial position of foreign operations with a functional
currency that is different from the presentation currency (RM) of the
consolidated financial statemenis are translated intc RM as follows:

- Assels and liabilities for each balance sheet prasented are translated al
the closing rate prevailing at the balance sheet date;

- Income and expenses for ach income statement are transiated at
average exchange rates for the year, which approximates the exchange
rates &t the dates of the transactions; and

- All resulting exchange differences are taken to the foreign currency
iransiation reserve within equity.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
{} Faoreign currencies {continued)

(iif) Foreign operations (continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of foreign
operations on or after 1 January 2007 are treated as assels and liabilities of
the foreign operations and are recorded in the functional currency of the
foreign operations and iranslated at the closing rate at the balance sheet
date. Goodwill and fair value adjustments which arose on the acquisition of
foreign subsidiaries before 1 January 2007 are deemed to be assets and
liabifities of the parent company and are recorded in RM at the rates
prevailing at the date of acquisition.

{m} Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
af qualifying asseis, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

() Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale and discontinued
operation

Non-current assets {(or disposal groups) are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally threugh & sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is
highiy probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in
its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary.

immediately before classificaiion as held for sale, the measurement of the non-
current assets (or all the assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-to-
date in accordance with applicable FRS. Then, on initial classification as held for
sale, non-current assets or disposal groups (other than investment properties,
deferred tax assets, employee benefits assets, financial assets and inventories)
are measured in accordance with FRS 5 that is at the lower of carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell. Any differences are inciuded in profit or loss.

A componenit of the Group is classified as a discontinued operation when the
criterfa to be classified as held for sale have been met or it has been disposed of
and such @ component represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operatians, is part of a single co-ordinated major line of
business or geographical area of operations or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 New and revised FRE, amendments fo FRS and Interpretation

(2)

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following new FRSs
and Interpretations, and amendments to cerlain Standards and Interpretations
were issued but not yet effective and have not been applied by the Group:

Effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
- FRS 8: Operating Segments
Effective for financial periods beginning on or afier 1 January 2010

- FRS 4: Insurance Coniracts

- FRS 7: Financial instruments: Disclosures

- FRS 101: Presentation of Financial Statements (revised)

- FRS 123: Borrowing Costs

- FRS 139: Financial [nstruments: Recognitien and Measurement

- Amendments to FRS 1. First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards

- Amendments io FRS 2: Share-based Payment — Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

- Amendments to FRS 127: Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements:
Cost of an hvestmant in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controfled Entity or Associate

2.3 Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective {continued)

Annual Report 2008

- Amendments to FRS 132: Financial Instrumenis: Presentation

-~ Amendments te FRS 139: Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement

- Amendments to FRS 7: Financial Instruments: Disclosures

- Amendments to FRSs Improvements to FRSs (2009)

- IC interpretation 9: Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

- IC Interpretation 10: Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

- IC Interpretation 11: FRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions

- |C Interpretation 13: Customer Loyalty Programmes

- IC Interpretation 14: FRS 1128 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Assel,
Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction

- Amendments to [C Interpretation %: Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

- TRi-3: Presentation of Financial Statements of Islamic Financial Institutions

Effactive for financial periods beginning on or after 1 March 2040

- Amendments to FRS 132 Financial Instrumants; Presentation - Classification
of Rights Issues

Effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010

- FRS 1: First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards

- FRS 3; Business Combinations {revised)

- FRS 127: Consolidated and Separale Financial Statements (amended)

- Amendmenis to FRS 2: Share-based Payment

- Amendments to FRS 5 Nen-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Qperations

- Amendments to FRS138: Intangible Assets
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2. Significant accounting policies {continued)

2.3 Standards and inferprefations issued but not yet effective {continued)

()

- IC Interpretation 12: Service Concession Arrangements

- IC Interpretation 15; Agreementis for the Construction of Real Eslate

- IC Interpretation 18: Hedges af a Net [nvestment in a Foreign Operation

- IC Interpretation 17: Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

- Amendments to IC Interpretation 9: Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

Effective for financial periods beginning on or afier T January 2011

- Amendments to FRS 1 Firstlime Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards -
Limited Exemption from Comparative FRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopters

- Amendments to FRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Improving
Disclosures about Financial Instruments

The Group plans to adopt the above pronouncements when they become effective
in the respective financial periods.

Unless otherwise described below, the above pronouncements are expected io
have no significant impact to the financial statements of the Group and the
Company upon their initiai application:

FRS 3: Business Combinations {revised)

FRS 3 (revised) introduces a nuraber of changes to the accounting for business
corsbinations ocourring on or after 1 July 2010. These include changes that affect
the vatluation of non-controliing interest, the accounting for transaction costs, the
initial recognition and subsequent measuremant of a contingent consideration and
business combinations achieved in stages. These changes will impact the amount
of goodwill recognised, the reported resulis in the pericd that an acquisition oceurs
and future reported results.

The changes by FRS 3 (revised) will be applied prospectively and only affect
future acguisition.

FRS 8: Operating Segment

FRS 8 repiaces FRS 114 2004 Segment Reporting and requires a ‘management
approach’, under which segment information is presented on a similar basls to that
used for internal reporting purposes. As a result, the Group's extarnal segmental
reporting will be based on the internal reporting to the “chief operating decision
maker”, who makes decisions on the allocation of resources and assesses the
performance of the reportable segments. As this is a disclosure standard, there will
be no impact on the financial position or results of the Group.

ERS 127 Consolidaied and Separate Financial Statements (amended}

FRS 127 (amended) requires that a change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary (without loss of control) is accounied for as 2 transaction with owners in
their capacity as owners and to be recerded in equity. Therafore, such transaction
will no longer give rise to goodwill, nor will it give rise to a gain or loss.
Furthermore, the amended Standard changes the accounting for losses incurred
by the subsidiary as well as loss of control of a subsidiary.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective {continued)
The changes by FRS127 (amended) will be applied prospectively and only affect
future acquisition or loss of control of subsidiaries and transactions with non-

contralling interests.

FRS 101: Presentation of Financial Statements (revised}

The revised FRS 101 separates owner and non-owner changes in equity.
Therefore, the consclidated statement of changes In equity will now include only
detaifs of transactions with owners. Alt non-owner changes in equity are presented
as a single line labelled as total comprehensive income.

The Standard also infroduces the statement of comprehensive income: presenting
all items of income and expense recognised in the income statement, together with
all other items of recognised income and expense, either in one single statement,
oF in two finked statements. The Group is currently evaluating the format {¢ adopt.
In addition, a statement of financial position is required at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period following a change in accaunting policy, the correction
of an error or the reclassification of itemns in the financial statements. This revised
FRS doss not have any impact on the financiat position and results of the Group
and the Company.

ERS 7: Financial Insiruments; Disclosures. FRS 138: Fingncial Instryments:
Recognition and Measurement, Amendments fo FRS 7: Finangial Instrumeris:
Disciosures and Amendments to FRS 139 Financial Instrumenis: Recognition and
Measurement

FRS 7: Financial instruments: Disclosures is a new Standard that requires new
disclosures in relation to financlal instruments. The Standard is considered
resulf in increased disclosures, both quantitaiive and qualitative of the Group's
exposure o risks, enhanced disclosure regarding components of fhe Group and
the Company's financial position and performance, and possible changes to the
way of presenting certain items in the financial statements.

The new Standard on FRS 139: Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurament establishes principles for recognising and measuring financial
assets, financial liabilities and some contracts te buy and sell non-financial items.
Requirements for prasenting information about financlal instruments are in FRS
132 Financial instruments: Presentation and the requirements for disclosing
information about financiat insfruments are in FRS 7: Financial Instruments:
Disclosures.

in accordance with the respective transitional provisions, the Group and the
Company are exempted from disclosing the possible impact to the financial
statements upon the initial application,
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective (continued)

Amendmenis o FRSs ‘Improvements tc FRSs (2008)

FRS 117 Leases: Clarifies on the classification of lsases of land and buildings.
The Group is still assessing the potential implication as a result of the
reclassification of its unexpired land leases as operating or finance leases. For
those land element held under eperating leases that are required to be reclassified
as finance leases, the Group shall recognise a corresponding asset and fability in
the financial staternents which wili be applied retrospectively upon initial
application. However, in accordance with the transitional provision, the Group is
permitted to reassess lease classification on the basis of the facts and
circumstances existing on the date it adopts the amendmenis; and recognise the
assel and liability related to a fand lease newly classified as a finance lease at
their fair valuss on that date; any difference between those fair values is
recognised in retained earnings. The Group is currently in the process of
assessing the impact of this amendment.

FRS 140 Investment Property: Property under construction or development for
future use as an investment property is classified as investment property. Where
the fair value model Is applied, such property is measured at fair value. If fair value
cannot be reliably determined, the investment under construction wilt be measured
at cost until such time as fair vaiue can be deiermined or construction is compleie.
The Company has previously accounted for such: assets using the cost model. The
amendment also includes changes in terminology in the Standard to be consistent
with FRS 108, The change will be applied prospectively.

2.4 Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgments

(a)

(v)

Critical judgments made in applying accounting policies

There were no crilical judgments made by management in the process of applying
the Company's accounting policies that coutd have any significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the balance sheet date that have s significant risk of causing a

material adjusiment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below,
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Significant accounting estimates and judgements {continued)

{b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty {continued)

Annual Report 2008

{0

(i)

(iii)

Depreciation of plant and machinery

The cost of plant and machinery for the manufacture of carton boxes is
depreciated on a siraight-line basis over the assets’ useful lives,
Management estimates the useful lives of these plant and machinery tc be
within 5 to 20 years which are common life expectancies applied in the
industry. Changes in the expected level of usage and technological
developments could impact the economic useful lives and the residual values
of these assets, therefore future depreciation charges could be revised.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill are impaired at least on an annual
basis. This requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-generating
units ("CGU") to which goodwill are allocated. Estimating a value-in-use
amount requires management to make an estimate of the expected fulure
cash flows from the CGU and alsc to choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flews. The carrying amount of
goodwill as at 31 December 2009 is RM1,633,024 (2008: RM1,633,024).
Further details are disclosad in Note 15.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unabsorbed tax losses, capital
allowances and re-investment allowances {o the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the tax losses and such
aliowances can be utifised. Significant management judgment is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future
tax planning sirategies.
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31 December 2009

Revenue

Sales of goods
Dividend income from
subsidiaries
Managemeni fees from
subsidiaries

Other income

Dividend income on equity
investments, quoted in Malaysia
Rental from operating leases
insurance claims

Commission received

Cthers

Operating profit/{loss}

i §m_’§ié- ients |

Group Company
2008 2008 2009 2008
R R RM RM
156,461,455 190,586,153 - -
- - 1,350,000 -
- - 209,554 200,000
156,461,455 190,586,153 1,559,654 200,000
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
RV RM RM RM
70 772 - -
201,500 162,000 - -
87,516 - - -
75,741 174,865 - -
294,343 205,735 674 -
659,170 663,372 674 -

The following amounts have been charged/(credited) in arriving at operating profit/(loss):

Auditors’ remuneryation

- Statulory audit {current year)

- Statutory audit {prior year)

- Other services

Bad debis written off
Depreciation and amortisation:
- Property, plant and equipment
{Note 12)

- Prepaid land lease paymenis
(Mote 14)

Group

2002 2008

RM RM

118,000 114,600
{6,250} {3,500}

24,200 28,925

18,960 3,888

8,359,684 6,187,825

243,150 243,151

Company
2009 2008
RM RM
20,000 30,000
(5,250) (2,000}
7.300 11,800
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5. Operating profit/(foss) (continued)

Foreign exchange gains
{Gain)oss on disposai of:

- Property plant and equipment

- Invesiment property
- Investment in subsidiaries

Minimum operating lease paymeanis

- Land and buiidings
- Plant and equipment
Provision for doubtful debts

6. Employee benefits expense

Executive directors (Note 7)
Directors of the Company
Other directors of subsidiaries

Other key management
personnel

Salaries and wages
Defined contribution plans

Other staff costs
Salaries and wages
Defined contribution plans
Cther related costs

Annual Report 2009

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
RM RM RM RM
{16,717) {70.,502) - (61,974}

(272,204) (91,440) - -
- (10,758} - -

- (241,772} - 481,396
295,908 249,762 - -
30,350 20,800 - -
734,402 2,168,617 - -

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

RM R RM RM

931,276 958,667 98,233 38,289
734,870 623,635 - -

1,666,146 1.683.202 98,233 38.289
101,800 243,048 - -
12,096 29,788 - -
113,898 272.836 - -
12,156,365 11,883,601 - -
1,016,991 972,641 - -
1,278,355 2,166,646 - -
14,451,711 15,122 888 - -

16,231,753 16.878.926 98,233 38,289
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Directors' remuneration

| Notes To The ﬁmﬁdéﬁ Smm nents

JER BERHAD rses
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Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
R R RM R
Directors of the Company
Executive directors (Note 8}
Fees 740,000 148,000 63,000 23,500
Salaries and other emolumenis 713,000 732,660 33,500 14,500
Defined contribution plans 78,276 79,007 1,733 289
931,276 959,667 95,233 38,289
Non-executive directors;
Fees 147,000 126,000 84,000 84,000
Other emoluments 10,000 10,500 8,500 10,500
157,000 136,500 93,500 94.500
Other directors of subsidiaries
Executive directors (Note 6):
Salaries and other emoluments 653,970 554,448 - -
Defined contribution plans 80,900 59,087 - -
734.870 823,535 - -
Total directors' remuneration 1,823,146 1,718,702 191,733 132,789

The esimated money value of benefits-in-kind for the Group in respect of executive directors of
the Company amounted fo RM13,284 (2008: RME,500}.

The number of directors of the Company whose total annual remuneration received from the
Group that fell within the following bands is analysed below:

Executive directors
Below RM50,000
KM100,001 to RM150,000
RM150,001 to RM200,000
RM250,601 to RM300,300
RMS00,001 to RME50,000
Above RMB50,000

Non-executive direcfors
Below RM50,000
Above RM50,000

2009

1

1

2008
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8. Tax expense

Current tax:
Malaysian income tax
Underprovision in prior years

Deferred tax (Mote 27):
Relating to origination and
reversal of temporary
differences

Relating to reduction in income
tax rate

Underprovision in prior years

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
RM RM RM RM
1,308,081 916,884 - -
5,038 - 5,038 -
1.314.129 916,884 5,038 -
(137,920} (212,411) - -
(67,000} (32,000} - -
263,038 84,925 - 20,340
38,108 {159,486} - 20.340
1,352,237 757,398 5,038 20,340

In the previous financial year, certain subsidiaries with paid up share capital of RM2.5 million or
less qualify for the preferential tax rate of 20% on the first RM500,000 of the chargeable income
and any excess of chargeable income over RMS500,000 shall be subject to the Malaysian
statutory tax rate of 26%. Efiective year of assessment 2008, these subsidiaries no [onger
qualify for the preferential tax rate of 20% and income fax is calculated at the Malaysian
statutory tax rate of 25% of the estimated assessable profit for the year.

A reconciliation of tax expense applicable to profitf{loss) before tax at the statutory income tax
rate to tax expense at the effective income tax rate of the Group and of the Company is as

follows:

Profit/{loss) before tax from:
- Continuing operations
- Discontinued operations

Taxation at 25% (2008: 26%})
Effect of different tax rates in
other countries

Effect of income subject to
preferential tax rate

Effect of changes in tax rates on
opening balance of deferred tax
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Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
RM RM RM RM
6,158,331 1,939,505 1,218,119 (592,978)
- 2,792,360 - -
6,158,331 4,731,865 1,218,119 (532,978)

1,639,583 1,230,285
- (728,014)
- (42,887}

(91,227) -

304,530 (154,176}
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" 31 December 2009

8. Tax expense

Current {ax;
Mataysian income tax
Underprovision in prior years

Deferred tax (Note 27):
Relating to origination and
reversal of temporary
differences

Relating to reduction in income
fax rate

Underprovision in prior years

'?F%‘nefiﬁmnﬁa! Statements

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
RM RM RM RM
1,309,091 916,884 - -
5,038 - 5.038 -
1,314,129 916,884 5,038 -
(137,930) (212,411) - -
(87,000) (32,000) - -
263,038 84,925 - 20,340
38,108 {(159,486) - 20,340
1,352,237 757,398 5,038 20,340

In the previous financial year, cerlain subsidiaries with paid up share capital of RM2.5 million or
less qualify for the preferential tax rate of 20% on the first RM500,000 of the chargeable income
and any excess of chargeable income over RM500,000 shall be subject to the Malaysian
statutory tax rate of 26%. Effective year of assessment 2009, these subsidiaries no longer
quatify for the preferential tax rate of 20% and income tax is calculated at the Malaysian
statutory tax rate of 25% of the estimated assessable profit for the year.

A reconciliation of tax expense applicable to profit/(loss) before tax al the statutory income tax
rate to tax expense at the effective income tax rate of the Group and of the Company is as

follows:

Profit/(loss) before tax from:
- Continuing operations
- Discontinued operations

Taxation at 25% (2008: 26%)
Effect of different tax rafes in
other countries

Effect of income subject io
preferential tax rate

Effect of changes in tax rates on
opening balance of deferred tax
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Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
RM RM RM RM
6,158,331 1,938,505 1,218,119 (592,8738)
- 2,782,360 - -
5,158,331 4,731,865 1,218,119 (582,978}
1,539,583 1,230,285 304,530 (154,178)
- (726,014} - -
- {(42,887) - -
(81,227) - - -
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31 December 2009

Tax expense {continued)

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
RM RM RM RM

Deferred tax recognised at
different tax rates - {32,000) - -
Effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purposes 179,308 344,850 - 27,504
Effect of income not subject to
fax {18,628) {21,663) {304,530) -
Effect of double deduction of
expenses {4,383) {13,815} - -
Effect of utilisation of current year's
re-investment allowances (740,538) (742,322) - -
Deferred tax asset de-recognised
on unabsorbed re-investmant
allowances - 110,035 - -
Ceferred tax asset not recognised
on unutilised losses - 123,560 - 126,672
Deferred tax asset not
recognised on unabsorbead
capitat allowances 220,046 442,344 - -
Underprovision of current tax
in prior years 5,038 - 5,038 -
Underprovision of deferred tax
in prior years 263.038 84,925 - 20,340
Tax expense for the year 1,352,237 757,398 5,038 20,340

The amounts relating to continuing operations available for carried forward 1o offset against

future taxable income are as follows:

Group Company
20089 2008 2009 2008
RM RM R RM
Unabsorbed tax losses 1,830,000 1,444,000 - 115,000
Unabsorbed cepital allowances 1,438,000 986,000 - -
LUnabsorbed re-invesiment
alfowances 22,360,000 21,451,000 - -
25 628,000 23,881,000 - 115,000
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9. Discontinued operations and disposal group held for sale

In the previous financial year, the Company disposed of its subsidiaries, Yuen Foong Yu Paper
Enterprise Dong Nai Company Limited ("YFYP") and Hello Paper Co Ltd. {"HP"), for an
equivalent of RM8,430,207 and RM148,038 respectively. The disposals were completed in April
2008 and October 2008 respectively, The assets and liabilities of YFYP and HF were de-
consolidated and the results from these subsidiaries were presented separately on the
consolidaied income statement as discontinued operations.

{a) Analysis of the results of the discontinued operations

Group

2009 2008

RM RM

Revenue - 24,213,837
Administration and general expenses - {21,041,068)
Interest income - 17,345
Interast expense - {396,854}
Profit for the year from discontinued operations - 2,792,360

{b} Profit for the year from discontinued operations

The following amounis have been charged in arriving at profit after tax of discontinued

operations:
Group
2009 2008
RM RM
Auditors' remuneration - 4,965
Employee benefits expense - 877,975
Prepaid land lease payments (Note 14} - 3,083
(c} Cash fiows attributable to the discontinued operations
Group
2008 2008
RM RM
Operating cash flows - {20,035,669)
Investing cash flows - 1,840,316
Financing cash flows - 19,677,362
Total cash flows - 1,482,009
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31 December 2009

{d} Effects of disposalis on financial position

Assets/{liahilities)

Property, plant and equipments
Prepaid land lease payments
investments

inventories

Trade and other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Short and long term borrowings
Trade and other payables

Net assets disposed

Minority interests share of net assets
Group's share of net assets
Total disposal proceeds

Gain on disposal to the Groug

Cash inflow arising from disposal

Cash consideration

Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiaries disposed
Net cash inflow io the Group

Investment in YFYP

Cost of investment

Less: impairment loss

Carrying amount

Total disposal proceeds

{.0ss on disposal to the Company

PAPER BERHAD @i

Discontinued operations and disposal group held for sale {continued)

Group
2009 2008
RM RM

. 37,531,417
- 442,341
- 7,275
. 12,203,394
- 16,718,279
- 3,866,441
- (31,061,875)
- (24,545.082)
- 15,162,190
- (6,825,719)
- 8,336,471
- (8,578,243)
- (241,772)

- 8,578,243
- (3.866.441)
- 4,711,802

Company
2009 2008

- 20,911,603
- (12,000,000}
- 8,811,603
- {8,430.207)
- 481,396

The disposal of HP had no effect on the Company's financial position as it was disposed by

a subsidiary of the Company.
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31 December 2009

10. Earnings per share

11.

Basic and diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year
atiributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company with the weighted average number of

ordinary shares in issue during the financial year.

Group
2009 2008
RM RM
Attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company:
Profi{ from continuing operations 4,604,882 1,048,686
Profit from discontinuing operations - 1,535,788
Profit for the year 4,604,882 2,584,464
Weighted average number of ordinary share in issue 75,250,601 75,250,601
Basic and diluted earnings per share (sen):
Profit from continuing operations 6.1 1.4
Profit from discontinuing operations - 2.0
Profit for the vear 6.1 3.4

The basic and diluted earnings per share are the same as there are no dilutive potential ordinary

shares oulstanding during the current and previcus financial year.

Dividend
2009 2008
RM RM
In respect of financial year ended 31 Dacember 2007:
First and final tax exempt dividend of 1% on 72,250,601
ordinary shares {1.0 sen per ordinary share) - 752,606
in respect of financial vear ended 31 December 2009:
Interim tax exempt dividend of 1% on 72,250,601
ordinary shares (1.0 sen per ordinary share} 752,508 -
752,506 752,506
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Group - 2009

Cost

At 1 January 2008
Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2009

Accumuiated depreciation
At 1 January 2009

Charge for the year (Note 5)
Disposals

At 31 December 2009

Carrying amount
Group - 2008

Cost

At 1 January 2008
Additions

Disposais

Disposal of subsidiaries
Al 31 December 2008

Accumuilated depreciation
AE 1 January 2008

Charge for the year (Nole 5)
Disposals

Disposal of subsidiaries

AL 31 December 2008

Carrying amount

Notes To The ﬁimndaé}?

12. Property, plant and equipment

_ORNAPAPER BERHAD srss

talaysia)
31 December 2009
Factory Plant and Other

buildings  machinery assets Total
RM RM RM RM
36,114,785 90,538,877 9,373,203 136,026,965
30,341 6,514,487 504,640 7,109,468

- {677.,295) (883,493) {1,560,788)
36,205,126 96,376,169 8,894,350 141,575,645
7,806,419 48,401,372 7,255,497 63,463,225
1,075,983 4,643,908 639,793 5,359,684

- (576,537) (714,837 (1,291,474}
8,882,402 52,468,750 7,180,353 68,531,605
27,322,724 43,007,419 1,813,997 73,044 140
35,725,346 88,388,872 8,732,094 132,846,312
389,432 3,106,105 937,031 4,432 575

- {(956,000) (236,921) (1,182,821)

- - (59,001} {59,001)
36,114,785 90,538,977 9,373,203 136,028,965
6,853,824 44,806,498 6,815,938 58,476,260
952,585 4,540,479 884,751 6,187,825

- (945,598)  (234,763)  (1,180,361)

- - (20,429} (20,429)
7.808,419 48,401,379 7.255,497 63,463,285
28,308,366 42,137,598 2,117,706 72,563,670

Annual Report 2009 61




~ NotesTe ._:T.héiifimnﬁaﬂ Statements

B2 !

RNAPAPER BERH/

corporated in Malaysia)

" 31 December 2009

12, Property, plant and equipment (continued)

{a) Other assets comprise motor vehicles, office equipment, furniture, fittings and office
renovation.

(b) The factory buildings and cerizin plant and equipment are pledged to secure bank
borrowings as disclosed in Note 25.

(6) Property, plant and equipment purchased by the Group during the financial year were

by means of :
2009 2008
RM RM
Cash . 3,349,468 3,815,258
Lease financing 3,760,000 617.317

7,109.468 4,432,575

(d} The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment being acquired under instatment
payment plans amounts to RM 11,910,840 (2008 : RM15,189,130}.

13. Investment property

Group
2009 2008
RM R

Cost
At 1 January - 461,742
Bispcsal - (461.742)
At 31 December - -
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January - 52,500
Disposal - (62,500}

At 31 December -

Carrying amount - -

The investment property was previously pledged to secure bank borrowings granted fo the
Group.

Annual Report 2009




PAPER BERHAD (s

alaysia)
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14. Prepaid land iease payments

Group

2009 2008

R RM

Al 1 January 14,420,255 14,663,406
Amortisation during the year:

- Continuing operations (Note 3) (243,150) (243,151}

- Discontinued operations (Note 9(b)) - {3,083}

(243,150) {246,244}

Disposal of subsidiary - 3,093

At 31 December 14,177,105 14,420,255

Relating to:
Long term leasehoid land 10,857,858 11,022,932
Short term leasehold land 3,319,147 3,397,323

14,177,105 14,420,255

The above properties are pledged to secure bank borrowings as referred {o in Note 25.

15. Goodwill
Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill has been alfocated fo the Group's GGUs identified according to the subsidiaries, as

foliows:
Group
2009 2008
Rm RM
Ornapaper Industry {Perak) Sdn. Bhd. 1,573,608 1,573,698
Ornapaper Industry {Johor) Sdn. Bhd. 59,326 59,326

1,633,024 1,633,024
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15, Goodwill (continued)

Key assumptions used in value-in-use calculations

- Notes To The Financial Statements
31 December 2009

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period. The key assumptions used for value-in-use calcutations are as foltows:

Ornapaper Industry
{Perak) Sdn. Bhd.

2009
Gross margin 18%
Growth rate 1%
Discount rate 8%

The following describes each key assumption used .

(i) Budgeted gross margin

Ornapaper industry
(Johor) Sdn. Bhd.

2009 2008
16% 15%
1% 1%
8% 8%

The basis used to determine the value assigned io the budgeted gross margins is the
average gross marging achieved in the year immediately before the budgeted year adjusted

for expected increase in direct costs,

(i} Growth rate

The weighted average growth rates used are consistent with past experience and based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions that represent management's best estimate of the
range of ecanomic conditions that will exist over the remaining useful life of the group of

assets in a CGU.

{it) Discounl raie

The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the refevant

segments.

The Group does not consider any reasonably possible change in the above key assumptions to
materially cause the recoverable amounts to be lower than its carrying amount,
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17.

Investment in subsidiaries

Unquoted shares at cost

Notes To The Financia
31 December 2009

| Statements

Company
2009 2008
RM RM
75 588,432 75,585,432

Details of the subsidiaries, all of which were incorporated in Malaysia, are as follows !

Name of subsidiaries

Ornapaper industry
(M) Sdn, Bhd.

Ornapaper Industry
{Batu Pahat} Sdn. Bhd.
Grnapaper Indusiry
(Perak) Sdn. Bhd.
Tripack Packaging

(M) Sdn. Bhd. #

Ornapaper industry
{Johor) Sdn. Bhd. #

Ownership interest

2009 2008
160% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
80% 80%

# Not audited by Ernst & Young

Principal activities

Manufacturing and sale of
corrugated boards and carton
boxes

Manufacturing and sale of
carton hoxes

Manufacturing and sale of
corrugated boards and carton
boxes

Manufacturing and sale of
carton boxes

Manufacturing and sale of
carton boxes

During the previous financial year, the subsidiaries, YFYP and HP, were disposed of. information
relating fo the said disposals are set out in Note 9.

Other invesiments

Al cost
Quoted shares
Unguoted shares

Market value of quoted shares

Group
2009 2008
RM RM
19,400 19,400
235,000 235,000
254,400 254,400
9,160 9,160
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18. Inventories

Group
2009 2008
RM RM
At cost:
Raw materials and consumables 21,129,618 20,000,108
Work-in-progress 146,878 59,383
Finished goads 1.857.662 1,614,974
23,134,256 21,674,465
19. Trade receivables
Group
2009 2008
RM RM
Trade receivables 66,697,183 63,861,509
Provision for doubtful debis (5,535,982} (5,000,232}
61,161,201 58,881,277

Wy

31 December 2009

20.

Bad debts of RM198,652 {2008: RM558,924) have been direclly written off against the provision

account during the year.

The Group's normal credit term ranges from 30 to 120 {2008: 30 to 120) days. Other credit
terms are assessed and approved on a case-by-case basis. Overdue interest of 0.50% to 1.50%
(2008: 0.50% to 1.50%) per month is charged on certain amounts exceeding credit terms.

The Group has significant concentration of credit risk that may arise from exposure to two
debtors which amounted to RM14,004,708 {2007: RM11,803,780) and represents 23% (2008:
18%) of the total gross debts. These twa debiors have strategic aliances with the Group and
the directors are confident that, based on steps taken and the committed payment scheme by
one of the debtors, the amounts, net of provisions made, will be recovered in full and as such, no
further provision for doubtful debis is required.

Other receivables

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008
RM RM RM RM
Deposits and prepayments 546,321 1,266,732 12,475 14,124

Other receivables 2,981,761 2,477,554 - -
Due from subsidiaries - - 10,718,728 10,495,358
3,528,082 3,744,286 10,734,203 10,509,482

Provision for doubtiul debis {5,324} (5,324) - -
3,522,758 3,738,962 10,731,203 10,508,482

The above amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The Group and the Company have no significant concentration of credit risk that may arise from
exposures fo a single debtor or groups of debtors other than the amount due from subsidiaries,
the debts of which account for 99% {2007: 99%) of the total gross amount receivables of the

Company.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
RM R RM RM
Cash on hand and at banks 13,305,999 4,762,505 259,661 40,755
Deposits with licensed banks 258,891 252.854 - -
Cash and bank balances 13,664,890 5,015,359 259,661 40,755

The deposits with icensad banks have been pledged to secure bank guarantee facilities.

The weighted average effective interest rate at the balance sheet date and the average maturity
of deposits as at the end of the financial year were as follows :

Weighted average

interest rate Average maturity
2009 2008 2009 2008
Deposits with licensed banks 3.50% 3.16% 365 days 100 days

Faor the purpose of the cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following
as at the balance sheet date:

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008
RM RM RM RM
Cash and bank balances 13,564,820 5,015,358 259,661 40,755

Bank overdraits (Note 25) {5,215,437) {5,872,184) - -
8,345,453 {856,825) 259,661 40,755

Share capital
Number of shares Amount

2008 2008 2009 2008
R RM

Authorised
Ordinary shares of RM1 each 100,000,000 100,000,000 100,000,000 100,000,000

Issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of RM1 each 75,250,601 75,250,601 75,250,601 75,250,601

Share premium

This non-distributable capital reserve arose from the issue of shares at a premium in previous
years.

Annual Report 2008 87




NAPAPER BERF

corporated in Malaysia}

24, Retained earnings/{accumulated losses)

25.

~ Notes To The Financial Statements
31 December 2009

With effect from year of assessment 2008, tax on a company’s profit will be a final tax and
dividends distributed to shareholders will be exempied from tax ("single fier system”). Section
108 tax credits are locked-in as at 31 December 2007 and companies with such tax credits are
given a transitional period of 6 years until 31 December 2013 to either ufilize their tax credits and
frank dividends under fimited circumstances or to disregard such tax credits and exercise the

aption to pay all dividends under the single tier system.

The Company has not elected for the single tier system and as at 31 Becember 2008, it has
sufficient tax credits and tax exempt profits to frank dividends out of its entire retained earnings

without incurring any additional tax liability.

Borrowings

Short term borrowings

Bank cverdrafts (Note 21)
Bankers' acceptances

Trust receipts

Term lcans

Finance lease payables {Note 26}

Long term borrowings
Term loans
Finance lease payables (Note 26)

Total borrowings
Bank overdrafts
Bankers' acceplances
Trust receipis

Term loans

Finance lease payables

Maturity of borrowings
Not later than one year

Later than one year and not iater than 2 years
Later than 2 year and not later than 5 years

l.ater than 5 years

The weighted average interest effective rates per annum at the balance sheet date for

borrowings were as follows:

Bank overdrafts
Bankers’ acceptances
Trust receipts

Term loans

Finance lease payables

Annual Report 2009

Group
20098 2008
RM RM
5,215,437 5,872,184
44,502,613 49,449,614
7,090,787 1,612,887
485,788 424,633
2,615,249 2,778,142
59,909,874 60,137,460
2,413,801 2,931,026
3,725,847 3,077,209
6,138,648 6,008,235
5,215,437 5,872,184
44,502,613 49,449 614
7,090,787 1.612,887
2,899,588 3,355,659
8,341,096 5,855,351
66,049,522 66,145,695
59,909,874 60,137,460
1,843,956 2,880,484
3,450,445 2,053,991
745,247 1,073,760
66,045,522 66,145,695
Group
2009 2008
% Yo
7.65 8.19
3.99 4.24
6.80 8.00
5.03 7.02
5.24 5.02




31 December 2009

25. Borrowings {continued)

28,

27.

" Notes To The Financial S'We.memg’

=R BERHAD (s73cssis

at [alaysia)

The borrowings are secured by the Group's factory buildings and certain other assets and a
debenture covering fixed and fioating charges over all the assets and properiies as disclosed in
Noies 12 and 14. The borrowings are additionally guaranteed by a director of a subsidiary and

certain directors of the Company.

Finance lease payables

Minimum finance lease payments :

Not fater than one year

Later than one year and not later than 2 years
Later than 2 years and not later than 5 years

l.ess : Future finance charges

Present value of finance lease payables :
Not later than one year

Later than one year and not later than 2 years
Later than 2 years and not later than & years

Due within 12 months (Note 25)
Due after 12 months (Note 25)

Deferred tax liahilities

Group

2009 2008

RM RM
2,949,690 3,048,812
1,566,150 2,080,938
2.549,093 1,198,531
7,064,933 6,328,381
(723.837) {473,030}
6,341,096 5,855,351
2,615,249 2,778,142
1,359,042 2,428,600
2,365,905 648,609
8,341,096 5,855,351
{2,615,249) (2,778,142}
3,725,847 3,077,209

Company

2009 2008

RM RM
- {20,340

- 20,340

Group
2009 2008
RM RM
At 1 January 3,074,898 3,234,384
Recognised in income
statemnent (Note 8} 38,108 {159,486)
At 31 December 3,113,008 3,074,898
Relating to:
Temporary differences on
preperty, plant and equipment 8,545,508 8,505,798
Unabsorbed capital allowances (216,449) (83,000)
Unabsorbed re-investment
allowances (5,216,918} (5,349,098)
Others 865 1,198
3,113,006 3,074,898
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27, Deferred tax liabilities {continued)

The following items were not recognised for deferred tax assets:

Company
2008 2008
RM RM

Group

2008 2008

RM RM

Unutilised tax losses 1,848,000 368,000

Unabsorbed capital allowances 572,000 256,000
Unabsorbed reinvestment

allowances 1,483,000 113,000

3,913,000 737,000

28. Trade payables

The credit terms granted to the Group range from 30 to 120 (2008: 30 to 120} days.

29, Contingent liabilities

Unsecured corporate guarantees given to bank for
credit facilities granted to subsidiaries

30. Significant related party transactions

Company
2009 2008
RM RM

82,676,000 59,752,000

(a) The transactions below have been entered info in the normal course of business and
established on negotiated and mutually agreed basis:

Sales to companies in which Tay Kim Huat, a director of a

subsidiary, has indirect interest :
- Poh Huat Furniture Industries Vietnam Limited
- Paoh Huat Furniture Industries (M) Sdn. Bhd.

Sales to company in which a substantial shareholder has

interest
- Perfect Food Manufacturing (M) Sdn. Bhd.
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Notes To The Financial Statements
31 December 2009

30. Significant related parly transactions {continued}

31.

32

Company
2009 20608
RM RM

Net dividend received from subsidiaries:
- Ornapaper Industry (M} Sdn. Bhd. 512,500 -
- Ornapaper industry (Perak) Sdn. Bhd. 800,000 -
Commisicn paid to subsidiary:
- Ornapaper industry (BP) Sdn. Bhd. 75,741 -
Management fee charged to subsidiaries:
- Ornapaper Industry {M) Sdn. Bhd. 140,000 140,000
- Ornapaper Industry (Perak) Sdn. Bhd. 50,000 50,000
- Ornapaper Industry {BP) Sdn. Bhd. 19,554 10,000

{b) Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management personnel, including directors, is disclosad in Note 6.

Operating lease arrangementis

The Group has entered into non-canceliable operating lease agreements for the use of land and
buildings. The leases have an average life of between 2 to 48 years with renewal options in the
contracts. Such contracts include fixed monihly rentals. The future aggregate minimum lease
payments under such leases as at the balance sheet date but not included as liabilities are as
follows:

Group
2009 2008
R RM
Not later than one year 93,960 57,540
Later than one year but not later than 2 years 38,400 21,600
132,360 79,140

Financial instruments

{a) Einancial risk management objectives and policies
The Group's financial risk management policy seeks to ensure that adeguate financial
resources are available for the development of the Group’s businesses whilst managing its

interest rate, foreign exchange, liquidity and credit risks. The Graup operates within clearty
defined guidelines and the Group’s policy is not to engage in speculative transactions.
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32, Financial instruments {continued)
(b) inferest rate risk

The Group's primary interest rate risk refates to interesi-bearing debt, as the Group had no
substantial fong-term interest-bearing assets as at 31 December 2009,

The Group manages its interest rate exposure by maintaining a prudent mix of fixed and
floating rate borrowings. The Group actively reviews its debt portfolio, taking into account the
investment holding period and nature of its assets. This strategy allows it to capitalise on
cheaper funding in & low interest rate environment and achieve a certain level of protection
against rate hikes.

The informaticn on maturity dates and effective interest rates of financial assets and liabilities
are disclosed in their respective notes.

(¢} Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, mainly that of the United
States Dollars. Foreign currency denominated liabilities together with expected cash flows to
highly probable purchases give rise to foreign exchange exposures.

The unhedged financial assets/(iabiliies) of the Group that are denominated in United
States Dollars, are as follows:

Financial assets/{liabilities)

2009 2008

RM RM

Trade receivables 73,302 144,149

Other receivables - 18,960
Other payables (82,013) (25,797}

(d} Liguidity risk

The Group actively manages ifs debt maturity profile, operating cash flows and the
availability of funding so as to ensure that all refinancing, repayment and funding needs are
met. As part of its overall prudent liguidity management, the Group maintains sufficient
levels of cash or cash convertible investments to meet its working capital requirements. in
addition, the Group strives to maintain available banking faciliies of a reasonable level to its
overall debt position. As far as possible, the Group raises committed funding from both
capital markets and financial institutions and prudently balances its portfolio with some short
term funding so as to achieve overall cost effectiveness,
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32. Financial instruments {confinued)

{e} Credit risk

(0

Credit risk, or the risk of counterparties defaulting, is conirolled by the application of credit
approvals, limits and monitoring pracedures. Credit risks are minimised and monitored via
strictly fimiting the Group's associations fo business partners with high creditworthiness.
Trade receivables are monitored on an ongoing basis via Group management reporting
procedures.

The Group does not have any significant exposure to any individual customer or counterparty
nor does it have any major concentration of credit risk related to any financial instruments
except as disclosed in Notes 19 and 20.

Fair Values

It is not practical to ascertain the fair values of the investments in subsidiaries and other
unquoted investments because of the absence of market quoted prices and the inability to
ascertain fair values without incurring excessive ¢osts.

The carrying amounts of long term borrowings approximate fair values as the interest rates
charged on these horrowings are either close to, or pegged to, market interest rates for loans
of similar Ask profile as at balance sheet date. The carrying amounts of other financial assets
and other financial fiabilities approximate fair values in view of their relatively short maturity
periods.

33. Segment information

The Group operates in Malaysia and Is principally involved in manufactusing and sale of
corrugated board and carton boxes in Malaysia. Hence, there is no primary or secondary
segment information to report.
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